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NOTICE OF FORTY-THIRD (43rd) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (“AGM”) 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Forty- Third (43rd) Annual General Meeting of the 
Members of ARSHIYA LIMITED (“the Company/Corporate Debtor”) scheduled to be held 
on Friday, March 27, 2026, at 12:30 P.M. (“IST”) through Video Conferencing (VC)/ (VC)/ 
another Audio-Visual Means (OAVM). The venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be the 
Registered Office of the company to transact the following businesses:  

SYNOPSIS: - 

Members are hereby informed that the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) 
has been initiated against Arshiya Limited under Section 7 of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 by Punjab National Bank, the Financial Creditor, in respect of 
an alleged default of Rs. 193,24,35,349.59/- (Rupees One Hundred Ninety-Three Crore 
Twenty-Four Lakh Thirty-Five Thousand Three Hundred Forty-Nine and Fifty-Nine 
Paise). Arshiya Limited, being the Corporate Guarantor of Arshiya Northern FTWZ 
Limited (ANFL), became subject to CIRP after ANFL’s loan account was classified as a 
Non-Performing Asset (NPA) on 30.09.2014. In view of this default, Punjab National Bank 
filed an application for initiation of CIRP against Arshiya Limited on 20.08.2019. 

On 23.04.2024, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench, 
admitted the application filed by the Financial Creditor under Section 7 of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code and appointed Mr. Nitin Vishwanath Panchal (IBBI Registration No. 
IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00777/2017-2018/11350) as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP). 
Upon admission, the management of the Company vested with the IRP in accordance with the 
provisions of the Code, and all powers of the Board of Directors, including the management of 
affairs of the Company, became exercisable by the IRP during the CIRP period. 

Subsequently, an appeal was filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate 
Tribunal (NCLAT), Principal Bench, by a suspended Director of Arshiya Limited challenging 
the order passed by the NCLT. On 30.04.2024, during the first hearing, the Hon’ble NCLAT 
granted an interim stay on the constitution of the Committee of Creditors (CoC), based on the 
submissions of the appellant that a resolution proposal was being considered with the largest 
member of the lending consortium, Punjab National Bank. Further hearings were held on 
15.05.2024 and 10.07.2024, during which the appellant submitted fresh proposals for 
consideration by Punjab National Bank. However, on 16.07.2024, the Hon’ble NCLAT vacated 
the interim stay as the settlement proposals submitted by the suspended Director were rejected, 
and the constitution of the CoC was allowed to proceed. 

The IRP constituted the Committee of Creditors on 31.07.2024, and the first meeting of the 
CoC was held on 08.08.2024. During this meeting, the CoC appointed Mr. Pankaj Mahajan 
(IBBI Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017-2018/11420) as the Resolution 
Professional (RP) in place of the IRP, to carry out the functions under the Code for the 
remainder of the CIRP period. 

Since then, the CoC has held multiple meetings to oversee and supervise the CIRP in 
accordance with the provisions of the Code. During these meetings, the CoC has approved the 
Request for Resolution Plan (RFRP), the evaluation matrix for resolution applicants, and 
ratified various professional fees including statutory auditors, legal advisors, and transaction 
auditors. The CoC has also approved related party transactions, interim finance arrangements, 
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inclusion of additional claims received by the RP, and grant of rights for operational use of 
Company assets to facilitate smooth functioning during the CIRP. Extensions of the CIRP 
period have also been approved in accordance with Section 12 of the Code to allow adequate 
time for completion of the process. 

Members are further informed that due to the ongoing CIRP, the Company was unable to 
conduct its 43rd Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2023–24. The CIRP remains 
ongoing, with the Committee of Creditors actively supervising all proceedings to ensure 
compliance with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, and to facilitate progress toward 
a viable resolution plan for the Company, ensuring that the interests of all stakeholders are 
protected in a fair and transparent manner. 

In order to ensure statutory compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and 
pursuant to the powers vested in the Resolution Professional under the Code, the Resolution 
Professional has Schedule the 43rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to transact the 
requisite statutory business and to regularize all pending compliances with the Registrar of 
Companies and the Securities and Exchange Board of India. 

Accordingly, the following business is proposed to be transacted at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting: 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES TO BE VOTED: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the 
Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024, including the Audited 
Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow 
Statement for the year ended on that date together with the reports of the Resolution 
Professional Report and the Auditors thereon. 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2024, including the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that 
date, together with the Reports of the Resolution Professional and the Auditors thereon, as 
placed before the members, be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.” 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES TO BE DISCUSSED/NOTED 

2. To take note of non-preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for Financial 
Year ended March 31, 2024 

Members are hereby informed that the Company is undergoing the Corporate 
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016, which commenced on April 23, 2024. Pursuant to the provisions 
of the Code, Mr. Pankaj Mahajan has been appointed as the Resolution Professional of the 
Company to oversee and manage the CIRP and the powers of the Board of Directors stand 
suspended and are being exercised by the RP. 

Members are further informed that certain subsidiary company(ies) of the Company are also 
undergoing CIRP and/or their financial statements and requisite financial information were 
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not finalized within the prescribed timelines. In absence of complete and audited financial 
data from such subsidiary company(ies), preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in 
accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Accounting 
Standards/Ind AS was not feasible for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024. 

In view of the ongoing CIRP and the above circumstances, this agenda item is being included 
in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting solely for the purpose of complying with the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company will continue to take all 
necessary steps to ensure compliance and consolidation as soon as the required information 
is made available by its subsidiary company(ies). 

// All shareholders are hereby requested to take note of the same // 

3. To take note regarding non-applicability of retirement of Director by rotation for FY 
2023-2024.  
Members are informed that the Company is presently under the Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process (CIRP) in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, and 
Mr. Pankaj Mahajan is acting as the Resolution Professional (RP). 

Pursuant to Section 17(1)(b) of the Code, the powers of the Board of Directors remain 
suspended and are being exercised by the Resolution Professional during the continuance of 
CIRP. Accordingly, the provisions relating to retirement of directors by rotation are not 
applicable in the usual manner during this period. 

  



4 
 

The proposed appointment of the Director, who is liable to retire by rotation, is included in 
the Notice of this Annual General Meeting solely to comply with the requirements of Section 
152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. It is clarified that the Board shall continue to remain 
suspended during the subsistence of CIRP, and the tenure and continuation of the Director 
shall be subject to the Resolution Plan, as may be approved by the Hon’ble Adjudicating 
Authority. 

// All shareholders are hereby requested to take note of the same // 

 

 

For Arshiya Limited 

(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Pankaj Mahajan 

Resolution Professional 

IBBI Registration No: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017-2018/11420 

AFA Details: AA1/11420/02/311226/108808 VALID UPTO 31-12-2026 

Date: February 27, 2026 

Place: Delhi 
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NOTES: 
 

1. Pursuant to the General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and 17/2020 dated April 
13, 2020, in relation to “Clarification on passing of ordinary and special resolutions by 
companies under the Companies Act, 2013 ”, General Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated May 5, 
2020, 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022, 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 and 
subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 03/2025 dated September 22, 
2025 in relation to “Clarification on holding of Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) through 
Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM)”, (collectively referred 
to as “MCA Circulars”) the Company is convening the 43rd AGM through Video 
Conferencing (‘VC’)/Other Audio Visual Means (‘OAVM’), without the physical presence 
of the Members at a common venue. Further, Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(‘SEBI’), vide its circulars dated May 12, 2020, January 15, 2021, May 13, 2022, January 
5, 2023, October 7, 2023 and October 3, 2024 (‘SEBI Circulars’) and other applicable 
circulars issued in this regard, has provided relaxations from compliance with certain 
provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’). In compliance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the Listing Regulations and MCA Circulars, the 43rd AGM of the 
Company is being held through VC/OAVM on Friday, March 27th 2026 at 12:30 P.M. 
(IST). The deemed venue for the AGM will be the Registered Office of the Company i.e. 
Arshiya FTWZ, CO-1, Survey Nos. 178/3 & 178/4, at Post- Sai Village, Taluka- 
Panvel, District- Raigad- 410221. 
 

2. Members are hereby informed that pursuant to the Special Resolution passed by the 
Members of Arshiya Limited on April 30, 2024, the Registered Office of the Company has 
been shifted within the State of Maharashtra. The Company has duly intimated the said 
change of Registered Office to the Registrar of Companies by filing Form GNL-2 vide 
SRN AB0553353 dated 19/09/2024 as a general filing for record purposes. However, due 
to the ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) and practical constraints 
relating to affixation and authentication of the prescribed e-form with the Digital Signature 
Certificate (DSC) of the Resolution Professional, filing of Form INC-22 could not be 
completed within the prescribed timeline. 
 

Accordingly, the Master Data of the Company available on the MCA portal is presently 
reflecting the earlier registered office address and is pending update. The Company is 
taking necessary steps to complete the statutory formalities and update the records with 
the Registrar of Companies at the earliest. 
 

3. PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE 
A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. SINCE THIS AGM IS BEING HELD 
PURSUANT TO THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH VC OR OAVM, THE 
REQUIREMENT OF PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS HAS BEEN 
DISPENSED WITH. ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS 
AND THE SEBI CIRCULARS, THE FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF 
PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM 
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AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM, ATTENDANCE SLIP AND ROUTE MAP OF 
AGM ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE. 

 

4. Institutional Members/Corporate Members (i.e. other than individuals, HUFs, NRIs, etc.) 
are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG format) of their respective Board or 
governing body Resolution, Authorization, etc., authorizing their representative to attend 
the AGM through VC/OAVM on their behalf and to vote through remote e-Voting. The 
said Resolution/ Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
loveneet.cs@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com Institutional 
Members/Corporate Members can also upload their Board Resolution/Power of 
Attorney/Authority Letter, by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution/Authority letter”, etc. 
displayed under ‘e-Voting’ tab in their Login. 

 

5. Only registered Members of the Company may attend and vote at the AGM through 
VC/OAVM facility. 

 

6. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of 
names as per the Register of Members of the Company as on the cutoff date will be entitled 
to vote at the AGM. 

 

7. Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

 

8. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will 
be made available to at least 1,000 Members on a first come first served basis as per the 
MCA Circulars. This will not include large shareholders (shareholders holding 2% or more 
shareholding), Promoter/ Promoter Group, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The Members will 
be able to view the proceedings on National Securities Depository Limited’s (‘NSDL’) e-
Voting website at www.evoting.nsdl.com.  

 

9. In line with the MCA Circulars and the SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with 
the Integrated Annual Report 2023-24 is being sent only through electronic mode to those 
Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/ National Securities 
Depository Limited (‘NSDL’) and Central Depositories Services (India) Limited 
(‘CDSL’), (collectively ‘Depositories’)/Registrar & Transfer Agent (‘RTA’), unless any 
Member has requested for a physical copy of the same. The Notice of AGM and Integrated 
Annual Report 2023-24 are available on the Company’s website at 
https://www.arshiyalimitesd.com/ and may also be accessed from the relevant section of 
the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited and 
BSE Limited at www.nseindia.com and www.bseindia.com respectively. The AGM Notice 
is also available on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

10. Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 has mandated 

mailto:loveneet.cs@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.arshiyalimitesd.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
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the listed companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while processing 
service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from unclaimed 
suspense account; renewal/ exchange of securities certificate; endorsement; sub-
division/splitting of securities certificate; consolidation of securities certificates/folios; 
transmission and transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make service 
requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR-4, the format of which is 
available on the Company’s website at https://www.arshiyalimitesd.com/ and on the 
website of the Company’s RTA’s at www.bigshareonline.com.  It may be noted that any 
service request can be processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant. 
 

11. SEBI vide its notification dated January 24, 2022, has amended Regulation 40 of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations and has mandated that all requests for transfer of securities including 
transmission and transposition requests shall be processed only in dematerialised form. In 
view of the same and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and avail various 
benefits of dematerialization, Members are advised to dematerialize the shares held by 
them in physical form. Members can contact the Company or the Company’s RTA, for 
assistance in this regard. 

 

12. SEBI HAS MANDATED SUBMISSION OF PAN BY EVERY PARTICIPANT IN 
THE SECURITIES MARKET. MEMBERS HOLDING SHARES IN 
ELECTRONIC FORM ARE, THEREFORE, REQUESTED TO SUBMIT THEIR 
PAN DETAILS TO THEIR DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANTS. MEMBERS 
HOLDING SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM ARE REQUESTED TO SUBMIT 
THEIR PAN DETAILS TO THE COMPANY’S RTA. 

 

13. Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one 
folio are requested to send to the Company’s RTA, the details of such folios together with 
the share certificates along with the requisite KYC documents for consolidating their 
holdings in one folio. Requests for consolidation of share certificates shall be processed in 
dematerialized form. 

 

14. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and SEBI Circular, the facility for making 
nomination is available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members 
who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by 
submitting Form No. SH-13. If a member desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination 
and record a fresh nomination, he/ she may submit the same in ISR-3 or SH-14 as the case 
may be. The said forms can be downloaded from our website at 
https://www.arshiyalimitesd.com/ and website of the Registrar and Transfer Agent (‘RTA’) 
at www.bigshareonline.com. Members are requested to submit the said details to their 
Depository Participants in case the shares are held by them in dematerialized form and to 
the Company’s RTA in case the shares are held by them in physical form, quoting their 
folio number. 

 

15. SEBI vide Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/ CIR/2023/131 dated July 31, 
2023, and SEBI/HO/OIAE/ OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/135 dated August 4, 2023, read 
with Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/ OIAE/OIAE_IAD1/P/ CIR/2023/145 dated July 31, 
2023 (updated as on August 11, 2023), has established a common Online Dispute 

https://www.arshiyalimitesd.com/
https://www.arshiyalimitesd.com/
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Resolution Portal (“ODR Portal”) for resolution of disputes arising in the Indian Securities 
Market.  

 

Pursuant to above-mentioned circulars, post exhausting the option to resolve their 
grievances with the RTA/ Company directly and through existing SCORES platform, the 
investors can initiate dispute resolution through the ODR Portal at 
https://smartodr.in/login.  
 

16. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email 
addresses are requested to register the same with their DPs in case the shares are held by 
them in electronic form and with the Company’s RTA in case the shares are held by them 
in physical form. 
 

17. The Registers of Members and Share transfer books of the company will remain closed 
from Saturday, March 21st, 2026, to Friday, March 27th 2026 (both inclusive days) for 
the purpose of annual closure of books. 

 

18. In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) (4th 
Amendment) Regulations, 2018 notified on June 07, 2018 and further notification dated 
30/11/2018 any request for physical transfer of shares shall not be processed w.e.f April 
01, 2019. Further, in compliance with SEBI vide its circular 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January 2022, the following 
requests received by the Company in physical form will be processed and the shares will 
be issued in dematerialization form only: 

 

• Issue of duplicate share certificate  
• Claim from unclaimed suspense account 
• Renewal/Exchange of securities certificate  
• Endorsement 
• Sub-division/ splitting of securities certificate  
• Transmission  
• Transposition  

 

For this purpose, the securities holder/claimant shall submit a duly filled up Form ISR-4 
which is hosted on the website of the company as well as on the website of Bigshare 
Services Private Limited, Registrar and share transfer agent (RTA). The aforementioned 
form shall be furnished in hard copy form. 
 

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize their holdings at 
the earliest. 
 

19. Pursuant to Securities & Exchange Board of India vide its circular 
SEBI/HO/MIRSDMIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated 3rd November, 2021, 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/687 dated 14th December, 2021 and 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_POD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated 16th March, 2023 it is mandatory 
for holders of physical securities to furnish valid PAN (where the PAN is linked with 
Aadhar), full KYC details (address proof, email address, mobile number, bank account 
details) and nomination (for all the eligible folios). 

https://smartodr.in/login
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Freezing of Folios without valid PAN, KYC details, Nomination 

 

A. In case, any of the aforesaid documents/details are not available in a Folio, or on after 
1st October, 2024, the same shall be frozen by RTA. 
 

B. Similarly, in case the PAN(s) in a folio is/are not valid as on the cut -off date specified 
by the Central Board of Direct Taxes (CBDT) then also the folio shall be frozen as 
above. 

 

C. A member/claimant will be eligible to lodge grievances or avail service request from 
the RTA or eligible for any payment including dividend only after furnishing the 
complete documents or details as aforesaid. 

 

In case the folio continues to remain frozen as on 31st December 2025, the RTA/ 
Company shall refer such frozen folios to the Administering Authority under the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and or Prevention of Money Laundering 
Act, 2002. 
 

We would further like to draw your attention to SEBI Notification dated 24th January, 
2022 and SEBI Circular SEBI/ HO/MIRSD/ MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 
25th January 2022. Accordingly, while processing service requests in relation to; 1) 
Issue of duplicate securities certificate; 2) Claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account; 
3) Renewal/Exchange of securities certificate; 4) Endorsement; 5) Sub-division / 
Splitting of securities certificate; 6) Consolidation of securities certificates/folios; 7) 
Transmission and 8) Transposition, the Company shall issue securities only in 
dematerialised form. For processing any of the aforesaid service requests the securities 
holder/claimant shall submit duly filled up Form ISR-4. 
 

We hereby request to holders of physical securities to furnish the documents/details, as 
per the table below for respective service request, to the Registrars & Transfer Agents 
i.e., M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited. 
 

A member needs to submit Form ISR-1 for updating PAN and other KYC details to the 
RTA of the Company. Member may submit Form SH-13 to file Nomination. However, 
in case a member does not wish to file nomination ‘declaration to Opt-out’ in Form 
ISR-3 shall be submitted. 
 

 

Sr. No. Particulars  Please furnish details in 

1 PAN 

 

 

 

 

Form No: ISR-1 
2 Address with PIN Code 

 

3 Email Address 

 

4 Mobile Number 
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5 Bank Account details (Bank name 
and Branch, Bank Account 
Number, IFS Code) 
 

6 Demat Account Number 
 

7 Specimen Signature 

 

Form No.: ISR-2 

8 Nomination details 

 

Form No.: SH-13 

9 Declaration to opt out 
Nomination 

 

Form No.: ISR-3 

10 Cancellation or Variation 

of Nomination 

 

Form No.: SH-14 
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I 
 

 

II 
 

 

III 
 

 

IV 

 

V 

 

 

VI 
 

 

 

VII 
 

VIII 

Request for issue 

of Securities in 

dematerialized form in 

case of below: 
 

Issue of duplicate 

securities certificate 

 

Claim from Unclaimed 

Suspense Account 
 

Renewal / Exchange of 
securities certificate 

 

Endorsement 
 

Sub-division / Splitting of 
securities certificate 

 

Consolidation of 
securities certificates/ 
folios 

 

Transmission 

 

Transposition 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Form No: ISR-4 

 

20. In case of major mismatch in the signature of the member(s) as available in the folio with 
the RTA and the present signature or if the signature is not available with the RTA, then 
the member(s) shall be required to furnish Banker’s attestation of the signature as per Form 
ISR-2 along with the documents specified therein. Hence, it is advisable that the members 
send the Form ISR-2 along with Form ISR-1 for updating of the KYC Details or 
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Nomination. All the aforesaid forms can be downloaded from the website of the Company 
and from the website of the RTA at www.bigshareonline.com 

 

21. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along 
with the Annual Report 2023-24 is being sent only through electronic mode to those 
members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members 
may note that the Notice calling AGM along with the explanatory statement and Annual 
Report 2023-24 are available on the website of the Company 
https://www.arshiyalimitesd.com/ and on the website of National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) i.e., www.evoting.nsdl.com (the Authorized Agency for providing voting 
through electronic means and AGM through VC/OAVM. 

 

22. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed 
companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from 1st April, 2019 
except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view 
of this and to eliminate all risks associated with the physical shares and for ease of portfolio 
management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider 
converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company 
Secretary of the company or Bigshare Services Private Limited, Company’s Registrar and 
Share transfer Agents (“RTA”) (Tele No. 011-26387281/82/83) for assistance in this 
regard. 

 

23. Members who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses are requested to register the 
same with their Depository Participant (“DP”) in case the shares are held by them in 
electronic form and with the Company/RTA in case the shares are held by them in physical 
form. 

 

24. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, 
e-mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, 
nominations, power of attorney, etc., to their DPs if the shares are held by them in 
electronic form and to the Company/RTA if the shares are held by them in physical form. 

 

25. For receiving all future correspondence (including Annual Report) from the Company 
electronically shareholders are advised to register their e-mails id with the company/ 
Depository. In view of the above please follow below instructions to register their email id 
for obtaining Annual Report for F.Y. 2023-24 and login details for e-voting. 

 

For Physical Shareholders  
 

Send a signed request letter to Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company, 
Bigshare Services Private Limited at investor@bigshareonline.com providing Folio Number, 
Name of the Shareholders, scanned copy of PAN Card, Aadhar (Self attested scanned copy 
of Aadhar card) with subject line (Register E-mail ID Folio No(Mention Folio No) of 
Arshiya Limited.  
 

For Demat Shareholders  
 

https://www.arshiyalimitesd.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:investor@bigshareonline.com
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Please contact your Depository Participant (DP) and register your email address as per the 
process advised by DP. 
 

26. In case a person has become a member of the company after dispatch of the AGM notice 
but on or before the cut-off date for e-voting i.e., Friday March 20th 2026, such person may 
obtain the User ID and Password from RTA by email request on 
investor@bigshareonline.com.  However, if the shareholder is already registered with NSDL 
for remote e-voting then he/she can use his/her existing User ID and password for casting 
the vote. If a member forgets the password, it can be reset by using ‘Forgot User 
Details/Password’ or ‘Physical User Reset Password?’ option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

27. The voting rights of the shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up 
equity share capital of the company as on the cut-off date i.e., Friday, March 20th 2026. 

 

28. A person who is not a member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information 
purposes only. 

 

29. Members holding equity shares shall have One Vote per share as shown against their 
holding. 

 

30. Members can cast their vote separately for each business to be transacted at the Annual 
General Meeting. They may also elect not to vote on some resolution(s). 

 

31. With a view to helping us serve the members better, members who hold shares in identical 
names and in the same order of names in more than one folio are requested to write to the 
company to consolidate their holdings in one folio. 
 

32. In terms of SEBI Circular dated 09/12/2020, the depository shall send SMS/ email alerts 
regarding the details of the upcoming AGM to the demat holders atleast 2 days prior to the 
date of commencement of e-voting. Hence members are requested to update the mobile 
no./email ID with their respective depository participants. 

 

33. Those Members who have already registered their email IDs are requested to keep the 
same validated with their DP/RTA to enable serving of notices/ documents/Annual Reports 
and other communications electronically to their email ID in future. 

 

34. INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING THE AGM ARE AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 

In term of the provisions of section 108 of the Act, read with rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended (hereinafter called ‘Rules’ for 
the purpose of this section of the Notice) and Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 
the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to exercise votes on the items of 
business given in the Notice of 43rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) through electronic 
voting systems, to members holding as on Friday, March 20th 2026 (end day), being cut-
off date fixed for determining voting rights of members, entitled to participate in the remote 

mailto:investor@bigshareonline.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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e-voting process, through the e-voting platform provided by NSDL or to vote at the e-
AGM. 
 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING, E-VOTING 
DURING AGM AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER: - 
  
The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, March 24th, 2026 at 09:00 A.M. and ends 
on Friday, March 27th 2026 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled 
by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of 
Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e., Friday, March 20th 
2026, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in 
proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut- 
off date, being Friday, March 20th 2026. 
 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which 
are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A. LOGIN METHOD FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETING 
FOR INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT 
MODE 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and 
email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is 
given below:  

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-
Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is 
available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User 
ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 
services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 
services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website 
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 
 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices. nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ IdeasDirectReg.jsp 
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3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/ Member’ section. A new screen will open. 
You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account number 
held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. 
 

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” 
facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 

NSDL Mobile App is available on  

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 
page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are 
requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & 
New System Myeasi Tab and then use your existing my easi username & 
password. 
 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 
option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the 
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will 
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 
service providers’ website directly. 
 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
CDSL website www. cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi 
Tab and then click on registration option. 
 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 
After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option 
where the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of 
all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 

Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat mode) login through 
their depository participants  
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You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 
Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting 
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/ CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name 
or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.  
 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are 
advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at 
abovementioned website. 
 

HELPDESK FOR INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 
SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE FOR ANY TECHNICAL ISSUES 
RELATED TO LOGIN THROUGH DEPOSITORY I.E. NSDL AND 
CDSL. 
 

Login Type  Helpdesk details  
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue 
in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 
by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 
4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue 
in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 

 

  

B) Login Method for e-voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders 
other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and 
shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-voting website of the NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. 

 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

 

 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
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Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can 
log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once 
you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-
Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e., Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

Your User ID is: 

a) For members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 
Digit Client ID 

 

For example, if your DP ID is 
IN300*** and Client ID is  
12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

 

For example, if your Beneficiary 
ID is 12************** then  
your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For members holding shares in 
Physical Form 

EVEN Number followed by 
Folio Number registered with  
the company  

 

For example, if folio number is 
001*** and EVEN is 101456  
then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are 
given below: 

 

A. If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your 
existing password to login and cast your vote. 

 

B. If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need 
to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. 
Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial 
password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

 

C. How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

 

i. If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 
company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on 
your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from 
your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a 
.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file 
is your 8-digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of 
client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 
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physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your 
‘initial password’. 

 

ii. If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps 
mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose 
email ids are not registered. 

 

 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or 
have forgotten your password: 
 

a. Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares 
in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

b. Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical 
mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

c. Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical 
mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

d. Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for 
casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” 
by selecting on the check box. 

 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
 

 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meetings on NSDL e-voting system. 
 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meetings on NSDL e-voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in 
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active 
status.   

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-
Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual 
meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted. 

 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 
 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option 
on the confirmation page. 

 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote. 

 

General Guidelines for Shareholders 

 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter 
etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are 
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to loveneet.cs@gmail.com (email of 
scrutinizer) with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 
 

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload 
their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on 
«Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter» displayed under «e-Voting» tab in their 
login. 
 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an 
event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 
User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the 
password. 
 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl. com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 
44 30 or send a request to Amit Vishal at evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the 
depositories for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-
voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) 
by email to www.bigshareonline.com or cs.arshiyalimited@gmail.com. 

 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + 
CLID or 16-digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated 
Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to www.bigshareonline.com or 
cs.arshiyalimited@gmail.com. 
 

3. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are 
requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-
Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode. 

mailto:loveneet.cs@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:cs.arshiyalimited@gmail.com
mailto:cs.arshiyalimited@gmail.com
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4. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in  for 
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

 

5. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and 
email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE 
AGM/EGM ARE AS UNDER: 
 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions 
mentioned above for remote e-voting. 

 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through 
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote 
e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through 
e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM. 

 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 
EGM/AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the 
facility for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned 
for Remote e-voting. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM 
THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM 
through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps 
mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you 
can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu against 
company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join 
General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please 
note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have 
forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-
Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed 
to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through 
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in


20 
 

Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-
Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting 
may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 10 
(ten) days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio 
number, email id, mobile number at Company email ID – 
cs.arshiyalimited@gmail.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the 
AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 10 (ten) days prior to meeting 
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number 
at (company email id– cs.arshiyalimited@gmail.com). These queries will be replied to 
by the Company suitably by email. 

 

6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed 
to express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 

 

7. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 
meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

 

8. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the 
AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through 
VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered 
invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 
shareholders attending the meeting. 

 

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS: 
 

1. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of 
beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be 
entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through 
ballot paper. 
 

2. Mr. Loveneet Handa (FCS Membership No. 9055 & COP 10753), Proprietor of 
Loveneet Handa & Associates having peer review certificate number: 5316/2023, 
has been appointed for as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the 
Company to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent 
manner. 

 

3. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which 
voting is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, for all those 
members who are present VC / OAVM at the AGM but have not cast their votes by 
availing the remote e-voting facility. 

 

4. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will first count the 
votes cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting 
in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and 
shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated 
scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman 
or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare 
the result of the voting forthwith. 

 

mailto:cs.arshiyalimited@gmail.com
mailto:cs.arshiyalimited@gmail.com
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5. The Scrutinizer shall within two (2) working days of conclusion of the AGM submit 
his Scrutinizer Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any to the Chairman 
or any Director of the Company or any other person authorized who shall declare the 
results of voting forthwith. 

 

6. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the 
website of the Company http://www.arshiyalimited.com/ and on the website of NSDL 
immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by 
him in writing and communicated to the NSE Limited. 

 

 

For Arshiya Limited 

(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 

 

 

Sd/- 

Pankaj Mahajan 

Resolution Professional 

IBBI Registration No: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017-2018/11420 

AFA Details: AA1/11420/02/311226/108808 VALID UPTO 31-12-2026 

 

Date: February 27, 2026 

Place: Delhi 
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REPORT BY RESOLUTION PROFESSIONAL 

 

To, 

The Members 

ARSHIYA LIMITED (“herein referred as “the Company/ The Corporate Debtor”)”) 
(COMPANY UNDER CIRP)  

ARSHIYA FTWZ, CO-1, SURVEY NO 178/3 & 178/4, 

AT POST – SAI VILLAGE, TALUKA- PANVEL, RIGAD- 410221 

 

The Resolution Professional appointed by the Hon’ble Adjudicating Authority, The National Company 
Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, in whom the powers of Board of Directors are vested presents the Forty-

Third (43rd) Annual Report of the Company along with Audited Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and 

Loss and Cash Flow Statement of the Corporate Debtor for the period starting from April 01, 2023 to 

March 31, 2024 and notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the period starting from April 01, 

2023 to March 31, 2024 read together with the Auditors Report  

 

1. CIRP BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANY  

 

Members are hereby informed that the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has been initiated 

against Arshiya Limited under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 by Punjab National 

Bank, the Financial Creditor, in respect of an alleged default of Rs. 193,24,35,349.59/- (Rupees One 

Hundred Ninety-Three Crore Twenty-Four Lakh Thirty-Five Thousand Three Hundred Forty-Nine and 

Fifty-Nine Paise). Arshiya Limited, being the Corporate Guarantor of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 

(ANFL), became subject to CIRP after ANFL’s loan account was classified as a Non-Performing Asset 

(NPA) on 30.09.2014. In view of this default, Punjab National Bank filed an application for initiation of 

CIRP against Arshiya Limited on 20.08.2019. 

On 23.04.2024, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench, admitted the 
application filed by the Financial Creditor under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code and 

appointed Mr. Nitin Vishwanath Panchal (IBBI Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00777/2017-

2018/11350) as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP). Upon admission, the management of the 

Company vested with the IRP in accordance with the provisions of the Code, and all powers of the Board 

of Directors, including the management of affairs of the Company, became exercisable by the IRP during 

the CIRP period. 

Subsequently, an appeal was filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal 
(NCLAT), Principal Bench, by a suspended Director of Arshiya Limited challenging the order passed by 

the NCLT. On 30.04.2024, during the first hearing, the Hon’ble NCLAT granted an interim stay on the 

constitution of the Committee of Creditors (CoC), based on the submissions of the appellant that a 

resolution proposal was being considered with the largest member of the lending consortium, Punjab 

National Bank. Further hearings were held on 15.05.2024 and 10.07.2024, during which the appellant 

submitted fresh proposals for consideration by Punjab National Bank. However, on 16.07.2024, the Hon’ble 
NCLAT vacated the interim stay as the settlement proposals submitted by the suspended Director were 

rejected, and the constitution of the CoC was allowed to proceed. 
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The IRP constituted the Committee of Creditors on 31.07.2024, and the first meeting of the CoC was held 

on 08.08.2024. During this meeting, the CoC appointed Mr. Pankaj Mahajan (IBBI Registration No. 

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017-2018/11420) as the Resolution Professional (RP) in place of the IRP, to 

carry out the functions under the Code for the remainder of the CIRP period. 

Since then, the CoC has held multiple meetings to oversee and supervise the CIRP in accordance with the 

provisions of the Code. During these meetings, the CoC has approved the Request for Resolution Plan 

(RFRP), the evaluation matrix for resolution applicants, and ratified various professional fees including 

statutory auditors, legal advisors, and transaction auditors. The CoC has also approved related party 

transactions, interim finance arrangements, inclusion of additional claims received by the RP, and grant of 

rights for operational use of Company assets to facilitate smooth functioning during the CIRP.  

Members are further informed that due to the ongoing CIRP, the Company was unable to conduct its 43rd 

Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2023–24. The CIRP remains ongoing, with the Committee 

of Creditors actively supervising all proceedings to ensure compliance with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 

Code, 2016, and to facilitate progress toward a viable resolution plan for the Company, ensuring that the 

interests of all stakeholders are protected in a fair and transparent manner. 

2. RESOLUTION PROFESSIONAL (RP) OF THE CORPORATE DEBTOR 

Pursuant to the initiation of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the provisions 

of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, Mr. Nitin Vishwanath Panchal (IBBI Registration No. 

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00777/2017-2018/11350) was appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional 

(IRP) of the Company. 

Subsequently, in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016 and upon approval of the Committee of Creditors, Mr. Pankaj Mahajan (IBBI Registration 

No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017-2018/11420) was appointed as the Resolution Professional 

(RP) of Arshiya Limited in place of the Interim Resolution Professional during the Corporate 

Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). 
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3.FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/ STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS: 

 

 

 

4.KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS (STANDALONE) 

 

S.No Ratio Formula 2023-24 2022-23 

1 Current Ratio 
Current Assets 0.24 0.70 

Current Liabilities 

  

2 Debt – Equity Ratio 
Total Debt -2.51 1.95 

Shareholder's Equity 

  

FINANCIAL RESULTS (Figure in Lacs) 

Particulars Financial Year 

ended 31st 

March, 2024 

Financial Year 

ended 31st March, 

2023 

Revenue from Operations 1,376.65 2,619.48 

Other Income 483.55 1,421.37 

Profit before Depreciation, Finance Cost, exceptional items 

and tax expenses 

(1,69,008.56) (5,980.36) 

Less: Depreciation/ Amortization impairment expenses 778.78 836.62 

Profit before Tax Expense and Exceptional Items and 

Finance Cost 

(1,69,787.34) (6,816.98) 

Less: Finance Cost 30,027.17 11,434.00 

Profit before Tax Expense and Exceptional Items (1,99,814.51) (18,250.98) 

Add/ (Less): Exceptional Items  (82,319.41) 0 

Profit before Tax Expense (1,17,495.10) (18,250.98) 

Less Tax Expenses (Current, Deferred & Earlier Year)  0 0 

Less MAT Credit 0 0 

Net Tax Expenses 0 0 

Profit after tax for the year  (1,17,495.10) (18,250.98) 
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3 
Debt Service 

Coverage Ratio 

Earnings available for debt service (Profit 

before tax + Interest + Depreciation + 

Amortization) 

-0.01 0.04 

Debt Service (Interest Principal 

Repayments) 

  

4 
Return on Equity 

(ROE): 

Net Profits after taxes 158.25% 22.02 

Shareholder’s Equity 

  

5 
Trade Receivables 

Turnover Ratio 

Revenue From operation 0.21 0.20 

Trade Receivable Outstanding 

  

6 
Trade Payables 

Turnover Ratio 

Purchase 0.47 0.72 

Trade Payable Outstanding 
  

7 
Net capital turnover 

ratio 

Revenue From Operation -0.01 -0.10 

Current Assets- Current Liability  

  

8 Net profit ratio 
Net Profit -8534.86% -696.74% 

Revenue From Operation 

  

9 
Return on capital 

employed (ROCE) 

Earnings before interest and taxes -1.99% -2.79 

Total Equity + Total Debt 

 

10 Return on 

Investment 

Net Profit after tax 0.00% 0.00% 

Investment or Total Assets 

  

11 Inventory Turnover 

Ratio 

Cost of Goods Sold or Sales - - 

Average Inventory 

 

 

5.STATE OF THE COMPANY AFFAIRS, IF ANY. 

 

Arshiya Limited is a Public Company incorporated on July 03, 1981. It is classified as a non-govt company 

and is registered at Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. Its authorized share capital is Rs. 60,50,00,000/- and 

its paid-up capital is Rs. 52,69,51,830/-.  

 

Total Revenue earned by the Corporate Debtor (from its operations and from other sources) is Rs. 

1376.65 Lakhs during the year which was higher in comparison to the revenue of earned during the 

previous year Rs. 2,619.48 Lakhs. Further, the Corporate Debtor has incurred a Net Loss of Rs. 

(117493.42) Lakhs in comparison to Rs. (18,250.98) Lakhs in the previous financial year 

 

Further, The Resolution Professional is making all his endeavor to carry the operations of the corporate 

debtor on a going concern basis and protecting and preserving the value of the corporate debtor's property. 
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6. RESERVE AND SURPLUS  

 

As of March 31, 2024, the Company’s reserves and surplus stood at INR (39,853.63) lakhs. This comprises 

the Security Premium Account balance of INR 2,38,771.31 lakhs. The ESOP Reserve remained at INR 

228.84 lakhs, reflecting the allocation towards employee stock options. The General Reserve stood at INR 

940.18 Lakhs. The Amalgamation Reserve stood at 124.80 Lakhs. The Retained earnings showed a 

cumulative balance of INR (2,79,918.76) lakhs.   

 

 

Particulars Amount (INR) 

Balance at the Beginning of the year  (1,62,425.34) 

Loss for the year  (1,17,495.10) 

Other Comprehensive Income 1.68 

ESOP reserve 228.84 

General Reserve  940.18 

Amalgamation Reserve  124.80 

Reserve and Surplus   2,38,771.31 

Balance at the end of the year (39,853.63) 

 

 

 

7.DIVIDEND AND TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO THE INVESTOR 

EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND: 

 

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the companies Act, 2013, does not apply to the company, as no dividend 

is recommended to the shareholders of the Company and there was no transfer of unclaimed dividend to 

investor education and protection fund IEPF) as well during the period under review due to the ongoing 

CIRP of the company under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

 

8.CHANGE IN THE NAME OF THE COMPANY: 

 

There was no change in the name of the Company during the period under review. 
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9. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 

POSITION OF THE CORPORATE DEBTOR WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE 

END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE CORPORATE DEBTOR TO WHICH THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 

 

The Members are informed that no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the 

Company occurred during the financial year under review. 

However, subsequent to the closure of the financial year and up to the date of this Report, the Corporate 

Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has been initiated against Arshiya Limited under Section 7 of the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

An application was filed by Punjab National Bank, the Financial Creditor, before the Hon’ble National 

Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, in respect of an alleged default amounting to Rs. 

193,24,35,349.59/- (Rupees One Hundred Ninety-Three Crore Twenty-Four Lakh Thirty-Five Thousand 

Three Hundred Forty-Nine and Fifty-Nine Paise). The Company, being the Corporate Guarantor of Arshiya 

Northern FTWZ Limited, became subject to CIRP proceedings pursuant to the default. 

The said application was admitted by the Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai Bench on 23.04.2024, and Mr. Nitin 
Vishwanath Panchal (IBBI Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00777/2017-2018/11350) was appointed 

as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP). Upon such admission, the management of the Company stood 

vested with the IRP in accordance with the provisions of the Code, and the powers of the Board of Directors 

became exercisable by the IRP during the CIRP period. 

Subsequently, an appeal was filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal 
(NCLAT), Principal Bench, by a suspended Director of Arshiya Limited challenging the order passed by 

the NCLT. On 30.04.2024, during the first hearing, the Hon’ble NCLAT granted an interim stay on the 

constitution of the Committee of Creditors (CoC), based on the submissions of the appellant that a 

resolution proposal was being considered with the largest member of the lending consortium, Punjab 

National Bank. Further hearings were held on 15.05.2024 and 10.07.2024, during which the appellant 

submitted fresh proposals for consideration by Punjab National Bank. However, on 16.07.2024, the Hon’ble 
NCLAT vacated the interim stay as the settlement proposals submitted by the suspended Director were 

rejected, and the constitution of the CoC was allowed to proceed. 

The IRP constituted the Committee of Creditors on 31.07.2024, and the first meeting of the CoC was held 

on 08.08.2024. During this meeting, the CoC appointed Mr. Pankaj Mahajan (IBBI Registration No. 

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017-2018/11420) as the Resolution Professional (RP) in place of the IRP, to 

carry out the functions under the Code for the remainder of the CIRP period. 

Since then, the CoC has held multiple meetings to oversee and supervise the CIRP in accordance with the 

provisions of the Code. During these meetings, the CoC has approved the Request for Resolution Plan 

(RFRP), the evaluation matrix for resolution applicants, and ratified various professional fees including 

statutory auditors, legal advisors, and transaction auditors. The CoC has also approved related party 

transactions, interim finance arrangements, inclusion of additional claims received by the RP, and grant of 

rights for operational use of Company assets to facilitate smooth functioning during the CIRP.  
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Save and except as stated above, and subject to the outcome of the CIRP and orders to be passed by the 

Hon’ble NCLT, there have been no other material changes or commitments affecting the financial position 
of the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this Report. 

 

10. DETAILS OF REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT OR THE REPORT 

 

During the period under review, the Company has not undertaken any revision of its financial statements 

or reports for any of the three preceding financial years. This includes both voluntary revisions and any 

amendments mandated by a judicial authority or regulatory body. The Company confirms that no revision 

was made to its previously filed financial statements either voluntarily or pursuant to any order passed by 

a judicial or regulatory authority. 

 

This ensures that the financial position and performance disclosed in the previous years’ reports remain 
accurate and consistent, and no significant changes or restatements have been made post the approval of 

the respective annual financial statements. 

 

 

11. BUSINESS OPERATIONS: 

 

Your Company is a pioneer in introducing and ahead of time with the concept of Free Trade Warehousing 

Zone (‘FTWZ’) in India offering huge fiscal and other benefits to its customers. 
 

Arshiya Group currently operates two FTWZs — Panvel FTWZ near Mumbai spread over 145-acre, 

catering to western India; and Khurja FTWZ near Delhi spread over 127 acres, catering to north India. 

 

Free trade warehousing zones are a category of special economic zones set up to improve logistics 

infrastructure and facilitate and promote cross-border / international trade. Arshiya’s FTWZs serve as mega 
trading hubs with integrated logistics infrastructure such as special storage areas, world-class material 

handling equipment, container yards, inland container depot, customs office and commercial complex. 

 

FTWZ facility at Panvel near Mumbai has world class warehousing infrastructure facility meeting the 

global standards in vicinity of the country’s busiest container port, JNPT. It is well connected with National 
and State Highways, and proposed International Airport in Navi Mumbai. This facility also offers a wide 

range of third-party logistics (‘3PL’) services besides various value optimization services (‘VOS’) to its 
customers. 

 

Khurja FTWZ near Delhi NCR is strategically located about 80 km from India's capital. Khurja FTWZ is 

strategically located close to the eastern and western dedicated freight corridor (DFC). Increasing 

acceptance of the FTWZs with various benefits it offers is witnessing increasing enquiries for bigger space. 

With various Government reforms and increasing economic activities in the country, the warehousing 

sector is witnessing increasing participation from institutional investors. 

 

b. Third Party Logistics (‘3PL’) Services Segment: 
 

With aggressive objective to be serving and providing class of services to its customers your company is in 

the business of providing 3PL and other value optimization services such as handling and transportation, 

packaging, consolidation, palletization, labelling, kitting, bagging, bottling, cutting-slitting, survey, quality 

assurance, refurbishment, repairs and maintenance, washing, etc., to its various clientele through its 

subsidiaries which is going to be a key player in business dynamics. 
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12. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS, IF ANY: 

 

During the period under review, there has been no change in the nature of the Company’s business. The 
Company continues to operate in the logistics infrastructure sector, primarily in the development and 

operation of Free Trade Warehousing Zones (FTWZ) and provision of integrated third-party logistics (3PL) 

services. 

 

13. REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT 

 

M/s Bigshare Services Private Limited has been appointed as the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) 

of your Company. They are responsible for handling all matters related to share transfers, dematerialization of 

shares, and other related services. 

Members are requested to direct all correspondence pertaining to the transfer or dematerialization of shares, as 

well as any other share-related queries, to the following address:  

 

M/s Bigshare Services Private Limited 

Pinnacle Business Park, Office no S6-2, 

6th floor, Mahakali Caves Road, Next to Ahura Centre,  

Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra- 400093  

 

13. LISTING OF SHARES 

 

The Equity Shares of your Company are listed on the National Stock Exchange Limited and BSE 

Limited Platform. The Company’s shares were listed on National Stock Exchange Limited on December 

14, 2009 and listed on BSE Limited on October 11, 1983. 

 

The listing on the National Stock Exchange Limited and BSE Limited has provided the Company access to 

a wider capital market and enhanced visibility among investors. The Company is following all applicable 

listing regulations and continues to adhere to the standards and requirements laid down by the NSE and 

SEBI. 

 

The listing details are as follows: 

 

• Stock Exchange: National Stock Exchange Limited and BSE Limited 

• NSE Symbol: ARSHIYA 

• Scrip Code: 506074 

• ISIN: INE968D01022 
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14. DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SCHEDULE V PART F OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS 

AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 

 

Pursuant to Schedule V Part F of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, the details in respect of the shares lying in the suspense account till March 31, 2024 is as under: 

Description No. of cases/No. of shares 

Aggregate Number of Shareholders and the outstanding shares in the 

initiation of suspense account in the beginning of the financial year 
Nil 

Number of shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of Shares 

from suspense account during the year 2023-24 

NA 

Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense 
account during the year 2023-24 

NA 

Aggregate number of Shareholders and the outstanding shares in the 

Suspense Account lying as on March 31, 2024 
Nil 

That the voting rights on these shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of 

such shares claims the shares 
NA 

 

15. REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 27 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, every listed entity is required to submit a quarterly report on Corporate 

Governance within 21 days from the end of each quarter. 

The Company has duly submitted the Corporate Governance Reports for all the quarters up to March 31, 2024, 

within the prescribed time limit. 

The said report is annexed herewith and forms an integral part of the Resolution Professional Report. 

Annexure I: Corporate Governance Report 

 

16.REPORT ON MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(e) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report and provides an 

overview of the industry structure, developments, opportunities, threats, performance, outlook, risks, and 

internal controls of the Company. 

The said report is annexed herewith and forms an integral part of the Resolution Professional Report. 

Annexure II: Management Discussion and Analysis Report. 
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17. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN 

 

The Company has established an Employee Stock Option Scheme titled "Arshiya Limited Employee 

Stock Option Scheme 2019" with effect from September 30, 2019, to attract, retain, and incentivize 

eligible employees by providing them an opportunity to participate in the growth of the Company. 

The scheme was approved by: 

• The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) held in its meeting on September 4, 

2019. 

• The Board of Directors in its meeting held on the same date, i.e., September 4, 2019, based on 

the NRC’s recommendation. 

• The Shareholders in its meeting held on September 30, 2019. 

The total pool size under the “Arshiya Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2019” Scheme is fixed at 

1,00,00,000 (One Crore) options exercisable into equity shares.  

The scheme is administered and implemented by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in 

accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and SEBI (Share Based Employee 

Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021. 

Allotments and Grants 

The Company granted a total of 17,00,000 employee stock options to eligible employees. Each option 

confers the right to subscribe to equity share of the Company at a fixed exercise price of ₹2 per share, being 
the face value of the equity shares. These options were granted in accordance with the vesting schedule, 

exercise period, and other terms and conditions prescribed in the Arshiya Limited Employee Stock Option 

Scheme 2019. This tranche marked the initial rollout of the Scheme, enabling key employees to participate 

in the Company’s growth journey. The Company allotted the corresponding equity shares to eligible 
employees on February 10, 2021. 

The Company has granted 12,00,000 equity shares to Mr. Viraj Mahadevia, Director (Strategy) of the 

Company (a non-Board position in the Company) on 30th June, 2021 at a price of ` 2 per share with a 

vesting period of 4 lakhs equity shares per year. 

Thereafter, 20,00,000 options granted to Navnit Choudhary (Vice President - Commercials) on 13th 

November 2021 

And the Company granted 12,00,000 employee stock options to eligible employees. The options entitle the 

holders to subscribe to equity shares of the at a fixed exercise price of Rs. 2 per share, being the face value 

of the equity shares. The Company allotted the corresponding equity shares to eligible employees on 

November 14, 2022. 
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18. CODE OF CONDUCT 

As the Board’s powers are suspended during the CIRP, the Company did not undertake any formal adoption 
or enforcement of the Code of Conduct for directors and senior management during the financial year 2023-

24. All such matters remain under the authority of the Resolution Professional. The same has been attached 

as Annexure-III. 

 

19. MD/CFO CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF REGULATION 

17(8) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 

REGULATIONS, 2015 

Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer are required to provide a certificate confirming, 

inter alia, the correctness of the financial statements and the adequacy of internal financial controls for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

The Company was not undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) during the financial 

year under review. However, subsequent to the close of the financial year, the Corporate Insolvency 

Resolution Process of Arshiya Limited was commenced pursuant to the order of the Hon’ble National 
Company Law Tribunal, and the powers of the Board of Directors stand vested in the Resolution 

Professional in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

Accordingly, as on the date of approval and signing of this Annual Report, the powers of the Board of 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are being exercised by the Resolution Professional. Therefore, the 

Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2024, has been issued and signed by the Resolution Professional in discharge of the powers 

vested in him under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

The said Certificate forms part of this Annual Report and is annexed herewith as: 

Annexure IV – Certificate issued by the Resolution Professional under Regulation 17(8) of 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 

 

20. CHANGE IN MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLE OF ASSOCIATION  

 

During the Financial year under review, there were no changes in the Memorandum and Articles of 

Association of the Company. The existing MOA and AOA continue to remain in force without any 

alteration, amendment, or revision during the financial year ended 31st March 2024. 

 

 

21. REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY 

 

During the financial year under review, there was no change in the Registered Office of the Company, 

which continued to be situated at 205, 206 (Part), 2nd Floor, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F Block, Dr. 

Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 400018. 
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Subsequently, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on March 28, 2024, approved the shifting of the 

Registered Office of the Company from the aforesaid address to Arshiya FTWZ, CO-1, Survey Nos. 178/3 

& 178/4, At Post – Sai Village, Taluka – Panvel, District – Raigad – 410221, within the State of Maharashtra 

but outside the local limits of the city of Mumbai. 

 

The said shifting of the Registered Office was approved by the Members of the Company by way of a 

Special Resolution passed through Postal Ballot on April 30, 2024. 

 

However, pursuant to the order dated April 23, 2024, passed by the National Company Law Tribunal, 

Mumbai Bench, initiating Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) against the Company, the 

Company filed Form GNL-2 (SRN: AB0553353) on September 19, 2024. As Form INC-22 has not yet 

been filed, the earlier Registered Office address continues to be reflected in the master data of the Company. 

 

 

22. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE TRANSFER: 

 

The Company’s Authorized Capital is INR 60,50,00,000 (Rupees Sixty Crore Fifty Lakhs only) divided 
into 28,75,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two) each and 30,00,000 0% Optionally Convertible 

Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.   

 

The Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company is INR 52,69,51,830 (Rupees Fifty- two Crore 

Sixty-nine Lakh Fifty-one Thousand Eight Hundred Thirty only) divided into 26,34,75,915 Equity Shares 

of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two) each.  

 

The Company had not issued any Equity Shares with differential voting rights nor any Sweat Equity Shares, 

Debentures, Bonds or Non–convertible securities, warrants and any Employee Stock Options during the 

year under review Hence, there was no change in the Share Capital of the company during the reporting 

period.  

 

The transfer of shares is processed and managed by the Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) of the 

Corporate Debtor in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

SEBI regulations. 

 

23. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 

As on March 31, 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company comprised a balanced mix of executive and 

non-executive directors, including independent directors, with diverse expertise and experience across 

industries. The composition of the Board is as follows: 
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DIN/PAN NAME OF THE 

DIRECTOR/KMP 

 

DESIGNATION DATE OF 

APPOINTEMNT  

00226355 Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  Mittal Chairman & Managing 

Director 

 

01-10-2011 

00703208 Mrs. Archana A Mittal 

 

Joint Managing 

Director  

25-10-2005 

00049591 Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra 

 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

07-08-2006 

00694160 Mr. Rishabh Shah 

 

 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director  

31-12-2005 

02988628 Mr. Ved Prakash Non-Executive 

Independent Director  

 

27-06-2020 

09758394 Ms. Priya Madhukar Kenkare Non-Executive 

Independent Director  

 

07-10-2022 

AALPS8025L Mr. Dinesh Banshilal Sodani  Chief Financial Officer 

 

09-08-2019 

AAZPD0776B Mr. Ajit Dabholkar Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer 

14-02-2023 

 

During the Financial Year under review, Mr. Kiran Ankush Shinde (DIN: 09667419) has resigned form the 

post of directorship with effect from April 07, 2023.  
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Post closure of Financial Year 2023-24:  

 

• Subsequent of closure of financial year, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has 

been initiated against the company with effect from April 23, 2024, and due to this the powers of 

the Board of Directors stand suspended and will be exercised by the resolution Professional. 

However, According to Section 17 read with Section 23 of the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 

2016, from the date of appointment of Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) Resolution 

Professional (RP), the management of the affairs of the Corporate Debtor shall vest in the interim 

resolution professional or Resolution Professional and the powers of the Board of Directors of the 

Corporate Debtor shall stand suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional 

(IRP) or Resolution Professional (RP). 

 

• On April 19, 2024, Mrs. Archana Mittal (DIN: 00703208), Joint Managing Director of the 

Company, has resigned from the company. 

 

• Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra (DIN: 00049591), Non-Executive Independent Director of the 

Company, has filed Form DIR-11 intimating his cessation from the office of Independent Director 

with effect from April 20, 2024, consequent upon completion of his tenure. 

 

However, the Company has not filed Form DIR-12 in this regard. The non-filing is on account of 

the Company being under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) pursuant to the order 

dated April 23, 2024 passed by the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench. Upon 

commencement of CIRP, the powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended and are exercised 

by the Resolution Professional, resulting in procedural and administrative constraints in 

undertaking routine statutory filings. 

 

The Company is in the process of taking necessary steps for filing Form DIR-12 in compliance with 

the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. 

 

• Mr. Rishabh Shah Pankaj (DIN: 00694160), Non-Executive Director of the company, has tendered 

his resignation with effect from September 09, 2024, however, the Company has not filed Form 

DIR-12 in this regard. The non-filing is on account of the Company being under Corporate 

Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) pursuant to the order dated April 23, 2024 passed by the 

National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench. Upon commencement of CIRP, the powers of 

the Board of Directors stand suspended and are exercised by the Resolution Professional, resulting 

in procedural and administrative constraints in undertaking routine statutory filings. 

 

The Company is in the process of taking necessary steps for filing Form DIR-12 in compliance with 

the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. 

 

• Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  Mittal (DIN: 00226355), Managing Director of the company has been re-

appointed for the period of Five years. The said re-appointment was approved by the board of 

directors in their board meeting held on April, 19, 2024 based on the recommendation of 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, however, the said re-appointment has not been 

approved by the shareholders in the General Meeting as the company came under Corporate 

Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) and no general meeting has been conducted after the date 

of commencement of CIRP.  

  

• On August 1, 2024 Mr. Ajit Dabholkar (PAN: AAZPD0776B), Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer of the company have resigned from the company.  
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• Mr. Dineshkumar Banshilal Sodani, Chief Financial Officer of the Company resigned with effect 

from 27 July 2025. In this regard, the Company has filed Form GNL-2 (SRN: AB6212238) on 25 

August 2025, and the same has also been duly intimated to the Stock Exchanges. 

 

However, no filing of Form DIR-12 has been identified in the records. This was due to the fact that 

the Company is undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) and, under MCA 

Version V2, there was no provision to file Form DIR-12 using the Digital Signature of the 

Resolution Professional. 

With the introduction of MCA Version V3, the facility to file Form DIR-12 is now available, and 

the same shall be filed in due course. 

24. WOMEN DIRECTOR: 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 3 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, and other applicable provisions, if 

any, the Company has complied with the requirement of appointing at least one-woman director on its 

Board. 

 

In line with this statutory requirement, Mrs. Archana A Mittal (DIN: 00703208) was appointed as a 

Woman Director on the Board of the Company with effect from October 25, 2005. Her appointment 

reflects the Company’s commitment to promoting gender diversity and balanced representation at the Board 
level. 

 

Post Closure of Financial Year 2023-24:  

 

Mrs. Archana A. Mittal (DIN: 00703208), Joint Managing Director of the Company, has resigned from the 

office of Director with effect from April 19, 2024. 

 

Consequent to her resignation and in view of the Company being under Corporate Insolvency Resolution 

Process (CIRP) pursuant to the order of the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, and as per 

the Section 17 read with Section 23 of the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016, from the date of 

appointment of Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) Resolution Professional (RP), the management of 

the affairs of the Corporate Debtor shall vest in the interim resolution professional or Resolution 

Professional and the powers of the Board of Directors of the Corporate Debtor shall stand suspended and 

be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) or Resolution Professional (RP). The 

reconstitution of the Board, including appointment of a Woman Director as required under Section 149 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, shall be undertaken upon approval and implementation of the Resolution Plan 

in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

 

 

25. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS DECLARATION: 

 

The Company has four Independent Directors on its Board, in compliance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules and regulations. The details of the Independent Directors are as 

follows: 
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1. Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra (DIN: 00049591) 

2. Mr. Rishabh Shah Pankaj (DIN: 00694160) 

3. Mr. Ved Prakash (DIN: 02988628) 

4. Ms. Priya Madhukar Kenkare (DIN: 09758394) 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV of the Act 

and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has 

devised a formal framework for performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees, and individual 

Directors, including Independent Directors. 

 

The Independent Directors have also submitted a declaration confirming that they meet the criteria of 

independence as specified under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 16(1)(b) of 

the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 

During the year under review, one (1) separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on October 

16, 2023, without the attendance of non-independent directors and members of the management. 

 

The Board is of the view that the Independent Directors have performed their roles with diligence and 

provided valuable guidance and independent judgment in the interest of the Company and its stakeholders. 

 

Post Closure of Financial Year 2023-24:  

 

The Company being under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) pursuant to the order of the 

National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, and as per the Section 17 read with Section 23 of the 

Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016, from the date of appointment of Interim Resolution Professional 

(IRP) Resolution Professional (RP), the management of the affairs of the Corporate Debtor shall vest in 

the interim resolution professional or Resolution Professional and the powers of the Board of Directors of 

the Corporate Debtor shall stand suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) 

or Resolution Professional (RP). 

 

26. INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(5)(iiia) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors is required to state its opinion on the integrity, 

expertise, and experience (including proficiency) of the Independent Directors of the Company. 

 

As the Company is a listed entity, the provisions of Section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to 

the appointment of Independent Directors are applicable. In compliance with these provisions, the Board 

has carried out a comprehensive evaluation of the integrity, expertise, and experience of all Independent 

Directors. 
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The Board confirms that each of the Independent Directors possesses the necessary qualifications, skills, 

and experience required for their role. Their professional background, in-depth knowledge, and expertise 

in diverse sectors further contribute to the strategic and operational objectives of the Company. 

Furthermore, the Independent Directors have demonstrated the requisite proficiency as per the criteria laid 

out under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and have 

actively contributed to the governance framework of the Company. 

 

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors meet the independence criteria under Section 

149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, and have the necessary competence to discharge their duties effectively 

and independently. 

 

Post Closure of Financial Year 2023-24:  

 

The Company being under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) pursuant to the order of the 

National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, and as per the Section 17 read with Section 23 of the 

Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016, from the date of appointment of Interim Resolution Professional 

(IRP) Resolution Professional (RP), the management of the affairs of the Corporate Debtor shall vest in 

the interim resolution professional or Resolution Professional and the powers of the Board of Directors of 

the Corporate Debtor shall stand suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) 

or Resolution Professional (RP). 

 

27. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company has conducted Five (05) meetings during the financial year under 

review. The maximum interval between any two meetings was well within the maximum permissible period 

of one hundred and twenty days. 

 

The followings Meetings of Board of Directors took place during the Financial Year under review:  

 

S.No Date of Meeting Total Number of directors 

associated as on the date 

of meeting 

 

Attendance 

No. of directors 

Attended 

% of attendance 

1. 30.05.2023 6 6 100 

2. 14.08.2023 6 4 66.67 

3. 09.11.2023 6 4 66.67 

4. 21.02.2024 6 3 50 

5. 28.03.2024 6 4 66.67 

 



 
 

39 

 

 Attendance of directors in board meetings: 

 

Name of the Director No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings 

attended 

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  Mittal 6 4 

Mrs. Archana A Mittal 6 4 

Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra 6 6 

Mr. Rishabh Shah 6 5 

Mr. Ved Prakash 6 4 

Ms. Priya Madhukar Kenkare 6 6 

 

28. MEETINGS OF THE SHAREHOLDERS  

 

During the period under review, Following General Meetings of the shareholder of the Company held: 

 

Type of Meeting Date of 

Meeting 

Total no. of shareholder Attendance 

No. of shareholders 

attended 

 

Annual General 

Meeting 

29.09.2023 25308 70 

 

29. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

In accordance with the Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosures Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and as per the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable 

rules made thereunder, the Board of Directors of the Company has constituted an Audit Committee. The 

Committee is entrusted with the responsibility of overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process, 

disclosure of financial information, internal controls, risk management, and audit functions. 
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Composition of the Committee: 

 

Name of the Committee Member Designation in Committee Designation in Company 

Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra Chairperson & Member Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

 

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  Mittal  Member Executive, Managing 

Director  

Mr. Rishabh Shah Pankaj Member Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

 

 

Meetings: 

The following Meetings of the Audit Committee took place during the Financial Year under review:  

 

Date of the Meeting No. of Members entitled to attend No. of Members attended 

30.05.2023 3 3 

14.08.2023 3 3 

09.11.2023 3 3 

21.02.2024 3 2 

 

Attendance of Members in the Audit Committee meeting: 

 

Name of the Director No. of Meetings held Attendance 

 

No. of meetings 

Attended 

 

% of attendance 

Mr. Ashishkumar 

Bairagra 

4 4 100 

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  

Mittal 

4 3 75 
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Dr. Rishabh Shah 

Pankaj 

4 4 100 

 

 

 

B. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

 

Pursuant to the Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 and as per the provisions of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable rules 

framed thereunder, the Company has duly constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee to 

oversee matters relating to the appointment, performance evaluation, and remuneration of Directors and 

senior management personnel. 

 

Composition of the Committee: 

 

Name of the Committee Member Designation in Committee Designation in Company 

 

Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra Chairperson & Member Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  Mittal Member Executive, Managing 

Director  

Mr. Rishabh Shah Pankaj  Member Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

 

 

Meetings: 

 

The following Meetings of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee took place during the Financial 

Year under review:  

 

Date of the Meeting No. of Members entitled to attend No. of Members attended 

30.05.2023 3 3 
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Attendance of Members at the Nomination & Remuneration Committee meeting: 

 

Name of the Director No. of Meetings held Attendance 

 

No. of meetings 

Attended 

 

% of attendance  

Mr. Ashishkumar 

Bairagra 

1 1 100 

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  

Mittal 

1 1 100 

Mr. Rishabh Shah 

Pankaj  

1 1 100 

 

The Committee has discharged its responsibilities relating to the formulation of criteria for appointment, 

evaluation of performance of Directors, and recommendation of remuneration policies for the Directors and 

Key Managerial Personnel. 

 

C. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

 

In accordance with Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Company has duly constituted a Stakeholder Relationship Committe to oversee 

matters relating to shareholders’ and investors’ interests. 
 

 

Composition of the Committee: 

 

Name of the Committee Members Designation in Committee Designation in 

Company 

Mr. Rishabh Shah Pankaj Chairperson & Member Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  Mittal Member Managing Director 

Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra Member Non-Executive 

Independent Director 
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Meetings: 

 

The following Meetings of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee took place during the Financial Year 

under review:  

 

Date of the Meeting No. of Members entitled to attend No. of Members attended 

09.11.2023 3 3 

21.02.2024 3 2 

 

 

Attendance of Members at the Stakeholder Relationship Committee meeting: 

 

Name of the Director No. of Meetings held Attendance 

 

No. of meetings 

Attended 

 

% of attendance  

Mr. Rishabh Shah 

Pankaj 

2 2 100 

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  

Mittal 

2 1 50 

Mr. Ashishkumar 

Bairagra 

2 2 100 

 

 

D. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE: 

 

In accordance with Regulation 21 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Company has duly constituted a Risk Management Committee. 
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Composition of the Committee: 

 

Name of the Committee Members Designation in Committee Designation in 

Company 

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  Mittal Chairperson & Member Executive, Managing 

Director 

Mr. Ved Prakash Member Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Mr. Rishabh Shah Pankaj Member Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra Member Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

 

 

Meetings: 

 

The following Meetings of the Risk Management Committee took place during the Financial Year under 

review:  

 

Date of the Meeting No. of Members entitled to attend No. of Members attended 

14.08.2023 4 4 

09.11.2023 4 3 

21.02.2024 4 2 

 

Attendance of Members at the Risk Management Committee meeting: 

 

Name of the Director No. of Meetings held Attendance 

 

No. of meetings 

Attended 

 

% of attendance  

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  

Mittal 

3 2 66.66 

Mr. Ved Prakash 3 2 66.66 
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Mr. Rishabh Shah 

Pankaj 

3 2 66.66 

Mr. Ashishkumar 

Bairagra 

3 3 100 

 

 

 

E. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE & (CSR) POLICY: 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies 

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company has constituted a Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) Committee to oversee and implement its CSR initiatives in a structured and effective 

manner. 

 

CSR Committee: 

 

The CSR Committee is responsible for formulating and recommending the CSR Policy to the Board, 

identifying and approving CSR projects in line with the policy, monitoring the implementation of CSR 

activities, and ensuring compliance with statutory obligations. 

 

Composition of the CSR Committee:  

 

S.No. Name of the Committee 

Member 

 

Designation in Committee Designation in 

Company 

1 Mrs. Archana A Mittal Chairperson & Member Joint Managing 

Director 

 

2 Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  Mittal Member Managing Director  

3 Mr. Rishabh Shah Pankaj Member Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

 

CSR Policy: 

 

The Company has adopted a well-defined CSR Policy that outlines its vision, guiding principles, focus 

areas, and the mechanism for implementation and monitoring of CSR programs. The Policy is designed to 

serve the larger goal of contributing towards the development of society. 

 

During the Financial Year under review, the provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

were applicable to the Company in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, 

the Company was not required to spend 2% of the average net profits of the three immediately preceding 

financial years, as the average net profit calculated for the said period was negative. 
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The CSR Policy of the Company is available on its website at www.arshiyalimited.com.  

 

 

F. COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS:  

 

Composition of the Committee: 

 

Name of the Member  Designation in Committee Designation in Company 

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  Mittal Chairperson & Member Managing Director 

Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra Member Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

Dr. Rishabh Shah Pankaj Member Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

 

The Committee shall function within the scope of authority delegated by the Board and shall operate in 

accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and internal governance policies of 

the Company. 

 

 

30. COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S, KMPS & OTHER EMPLOYEES APPOINTMENT 

& REMUNERATION INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATION, 

ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE, ETC.: 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the constitution of a 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee is applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the Company 

has duly constituted the Committee and has formulated a Nomination and Remuneration Policy in line 

with the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act. 

 

The Policy lays down the framework for appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, 

and Senior Management, as well as the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, and 

independence of Directors. It also outlines the guiding principles for evaluating their performance and 

determining their remuneration, ensuring that it is fair, transparent, and aligned with the objectives and 

long-term interests of the Company. 

 

Post Closure of Financial Year 2023-24:  

 

The Company being under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) pursuant to the order of the 

National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, and as per the Section 17 read with Section 23 of the 

Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016, from the date of appointment of Interim Resolution Professional 

(IRP) Resolution Professional (RP), the management of the affairs of the Corporate Debtor shall vest in 

the interim resolution professional or Resolution Professional and the powers of the Board of Directors of 

the Corporate Debtor shall stand suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) 

or Resolution Professional (RP). 

 

http://www.arshiyalimited.com/
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31. STATEMENT GIVEN BY INSOLVANCY PREFESSIONAL:  

 

The provisions of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement are ordinarily required to be complied with by the Board of Directors 
of the Company. 

 

The Company was not under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) during the financial year 

ended March 31, 2024, and the affairs of the Company during the said period were managed by the then 

Board of Directors and the management of the Company. 

 

However, subsequent to the closure of the financial year, the Company was admitted into Corporate 

Insolvency Resolution Process under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, and in 

terms of Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended and are being 

exercised by the Resolution Professional. 

 

Accordingly, this Report is being presented by the Resolution Professional in compliance with the 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Since the management of the affairs of the Company 

for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 was carried out by the erstwhile Board of Directors and 

management prior to commencement of CIRP, the Resolution Professional is unable to independently 

furnish the Directors’ Responsibility Statement for the said period and the same is not being provided in 
view of the suspension of the Board and cessation of their powers as on the date of this Report. 

 

 

32. STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH 

REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

 

The internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arshiya Limited are designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). 

 

Such internal financial controls include policies and procedures that: 

 

• Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and disposition of the assets of the Company; 

• Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts 

and expenditures are made only in accordance with appropriate authorizations of the erstwhile 

management; and 

• Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 

use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

 

The Company was not under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) during the financial year 

ended March 31, 2024, and the affairs of the Company during the said period were managed by the erstwhile 

Board of Directors and management. 

 

Subsequent to the close of the financial year, the Company was admitted into CIRP and the powers of the 

Board stand vested in the Resolution Professional. Accordingly, this statement is being made by the 

Resolution Professional based on the records, information and explanations made available for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2024, and in line with the observations contained in the Statutory Auditors’ Report 
on Internal Financial Controls. 
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Further, due to the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or management override of controls, material misstatements may occur and may not 

be detected. 

 

 

33. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION 

12 OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL 

GOVERNMENT: 

 

During the financial year under review, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any 

instances of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or employees under sub-section (12) of 

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, except for those which are required to be reported to the Central 

Government in the prescribed manner as per the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. The 

Resolution Professional of Directors hereby confirms that it has not received any such report from the 

Statutory Auditors and there have been no material instances of fraud noticed or reported during the year 

that require disclosure in this Report. 

 

34. PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, 

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES INCLUDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT: 

 

As on March 31, 2024, the Company has various direct and indirect subsidiaries. The Company is required 

to prepare consolidated financial statements in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013.  

 

However, subsequent to the close of the financial year, the Company has been admitted into Corporate 

Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), and certain subsidiary companies are also undergoing CIRP. Owing 

to non-availability and inadequacy of complete and updated financial information from such subsidiaries, 

the Company is presently unable to prepare consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2024. 

 

The Resolution Professional has caused the available financial information relating to the subsidiaries to be 

compiled by the accounts team in Form AOC-1 format, based on the limited records and data available with 

the Company. Accordingly, in compliance with the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement containing the salient features 

of the financial statements of subsidiaries, to the extent information is available, is annexed to this Report 

as Annexure V. 

 

35. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

 

The Company had adopted a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Policy outlining its vision, guiding 
principles, focus areas, and the mechanism for implementation and monitoring of CSR initiatives. The CSR 

Policy was designed to contribute towards the development of society and was available on the website of 

the Company, i.e. www.arshiyalimited.com   

 

In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate 

Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, a company is required to spend at least two per cent (2%) of the 

average net profits made during the three immediately preceding financial years towards CSR activities, 

subject to fulfillment of the prescribed threshold criteria relating to net worth, turnover or net profit. 

 

http://www.arshiyalimited.com/
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During the Financial Year under review, the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 

relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) were applicable to the Company. However, the 

Company was not required to incur CSR expenditure equivalent to 2% of the average net profits of the 

three immediately preceding financial years, as the average net profit computed in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act was negative.. 

 

36. DEPOSITS: 

 

Pursuant to Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Acceptance of 

Deposits) Rules, 2014, the Company is permitted to accept deposits from its members, directors, their 

relatives, and the public (in eligible cases), subject to compliance with relevant conditions. 

 

However, during the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, its 

members, directors, or their relatives. No amounts were outstanding as deposits at the beginning or end of 

the financial year. Therefore, the Company has fully complied with the applicable provisions under the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

Below is a summary table: 

 

S. No. Particular(s) Amount 

(i) Deposit Accepted during year Nil 

(ii) Deposit remained unpaid or unclaimed at the end of 

year 

Nil 

(iii) Amount of default in repayment of deposit or payment 

of interest thereon beginning of year 

Nil 

(iv) Maximum amount of default in repayment of deposits 

or payment of interest thereon during year 

Nil 

(v) Amount of default in repayment of deposits or payment 

of interest thereon end of year 

Nil 

(vi) Number of cases of default in repayment of deposits or 

payment of interest thereon beginning of year 

Nil 

(vii) Maximum number of cases of default in repayment of 

deposits or payment of interest thereon during year   

Nil 

(viii) Number of cases of default in repayment of deposits or 

payment of interest thereon end of year 

Nil 
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(ix) Details of deposits which are not in compliance with 

requirement of Chapter V of Act 

Nil 

 

 

37. PARTICULAR OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT U/S 186 OF THE ACT 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings 

of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company is empowered to make investments and to grant loans 

and provide guarantees or securities, subject to compliance with the prescribed limits and requisite 

approvals of the Members. 

The Company had obtained the approval of the Members by way of a Special Resolution, passed prior to 

the commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, authorising the Company to make 

investments and to grant loans and provide guarantees or securities up to an overall limit of Rs. 5,000 

crore in excess of the limits prescribed under Section 186 of the Act. 

During the financial year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of 

the Companies Act, 2013. The particulars of loans and financial guarantees given by the Company are 

disclosed in Note No. 58 to the financial statements, and the details of investments made by the Company 

are disclosed in Note No. 7 to the financial statements, which form an integral part of this Report. 

 

38. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES U/S 

SECTION 188 OF THE ACT 

 

All related party transactions entered by the Company during the financial year were in the ordinary course 

of business and on arm’s length basis, and in compliance with the provisions of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable Rules made thereunder. 

 

In accordance with the requirements of Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(2) 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Form AOC-2, containing the particulars of contracts or 

arrangements with related parties as required under Section 188(1), is annexed to this Report as Annexure–
VI. 

 

Further, disclosures as required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18 – Related Party Disclosures have been 

made in the Note 56 to the Financial Statements, forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

39. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

The management is adopting all possible measures to conserve energy and absorb latest technology 

available as is required under the provisions of Section 134(m) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The details of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as under: 
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a) Conservation of Energy: 

 

the steps taken or impact on conservation 

of energy 

NIL 

the steps taken by the company for 

utilizing alternate sources of energy 

NIL 

the capital investment on energy 

conservation equipment 

NIL 

 

b) Technology Absorption: 

 

the efforts made towards technology 

absorption 

NIL 

the benefits derived like product 

improvement, cost reduction, product 

development or import substitution 

 

NIL 

in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of 

the financial year) 

 

a. Details of technology imported, if any NA 

b. Year of import 

 

NA 

c. Whether imported technology fully 

absorbed 

NA 

d. if not fully absorbed, areas where 

absorption has not taken place, and the 

reasons thereof; and 

NA 

the expenditure incurred on Research 

and Development 

NA 

 

 

c) Foreign Exchange Earnings/ Outgo: 

 

Earnings USD 71650 

Outgo  NIL 

 

40. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

 

The board of directors of the company has adopted a risk management policy pursuant to the applicable 

provisions of the Companies act, 2013 and relevant guidelines. The policy provides a structured and 

disciplined approach to identifying, assessing, mitigating, and monitoring various risks related to the 

company’s operations and strategic objectives. It enables proactive management of risks across key 

functional areas including financial, operational, regulatory, technological, and reputational risks. 

 

The risk management framework is periodically reviewed by the board to ensure its effectiveness and 

alignment with the evolving business environment. 
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Further part of the annual report. details on the company’s risk management initiatives, key identified risks, 
and mitigation strategies have been provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section, 

which forms an integral 

 

Post Closure of Financial Year 2023-24:  

 

The Company being under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) pursuant to the order of the 

National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, and as per the Section 17 read with Section 23 of the 

Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016, from the date of appointment of Interim Resolution Professional 

(IRP) Resolution Professional (RP), the management of the affairs of the Corporate Debtor shall vest in 

the interim resolution professional or Resolution Professional and the powers of the Board of Directors of 

the Corporate Debtor shall stand suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) 

or Resolution Professional (RP). Accordingly, the Risk Management Policy and related matters of the 

Company are presently being overseen and administered by the Resolution Professional. 

 

 

 

41. ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM  

 

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism in accordance with the provisions of Section 177(10) of 

the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 

2014. Additionally, the Company complies with the requirements of Regulation 22 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

This mechanism enables directors and employees of the Company to report their concerns in a secure and 

confidential manner. The Vigil Mechanism serves as a platform for stakeholders to bring to the attention of 

the management any genuine concerns or grievances relating to unethical practices or improper conduct 

without fear of retaliation or victimization. 

 

The policy provides for adequate safeguards to protect whistle blowers from any form of harassment or 

adverse employment consequences. 

 

During the year under review: 

• The Vigil Mechanism remained fully operational and was actively monitored. 

• No individual was denied access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

• The Company did not receive any complaint under the mechanism for the financial year. 

 

The Board affirms its commitment to uphold integrity, transparency, and ethical conduct across all levels 

of the organization. The Vigil Mechanism Policy is periodically reviewed to ensure its continued 

effectiveness and alignment with regulatory expectations and best practices in corporate governance. 

 

 

 

Post Closure of Financial Year 2023-24:  

 

The Company being under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) pursuant to the order of the 

National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, and as per the Section 17 read with Section 23 of the 

Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016, from the date of appointment of Interim Resolution Professional 

(IRP) Resolution Professional (RP), the management of the affairs of the Corporate Debtor shall vest in 

the interim resolution professional or Resolution Professional and the powers of the Board of Directors of 
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the Corporate Debtor shall stand suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) 

or Resolution Professional (RP). 

 

Based on the confirmation received from the Resolution Professional, no complaints were received 

under the Vigil Mechanism during the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

 

42. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

MCA vide notification dated 05.03.2021 has substituted Rule 12 of The Companies (Management and 

Administration), Rules, 2014 as follows: - A copy of the annual return shall be filed with the Registrar with 

such fees as may be specified for this purpose, accordingly the requirement of MGT-9 has been dispensed 

with, however a copy of Annual Return in form MGT-7 is required to be placed over the website of the 

Company if any.  

 

In compliance with the amended provisions and the requirements of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 

2013, read with Regulation 46(2)(h) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Company, being a listed entity, has maintained a functional website and placed the 

copy of the Annual Return (Form MGT-7). 

 

Accordingly, stakeholders may access the Annual Return at the following web address: 

www.arshiyalimited.com  

 

43. POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL 

HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE 

 

Sexual harassment at the workplace constitutes a violation of the fundamental rights of a woman as 

guaranteed under the Constitution of India—namely, the right to equality under Articles 14 and 15, the right 

to life and to live with dignity under Article 21, and the right to practice any profession or to carry on any 

occupation, trade, or business under Article 19(1)(g), which includes the right to a safe and secure working 

environment. 

 

In accordance with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, Arshiya Limited has adopted a comprehensive policy on the 

prevention, prohibition, and redressal of sexual harassment at the workplace.  

 

The Company adopts a zero-tolerance policy towards sexual harassment and is committed to fostering a 

culture of equality, dignity, and respect. All complaints of sexual harassment are taken seriously, handled 

with the utmost confidentiality, and investigated in a prompt and impartial manner. Strict disciplinary 

action, including termination of employment, is taken against individuals found guilty of such misconduct. 

The Company also ensures that no employee is subjected to retaliation or victimization for raising a concern 

or participating in an inquiry. 

 

Statutory Disclosures: 

The details regarding sexual harassment complaints for the financial year 2023-24 are as follows: 

http://www.arshiyalimited.com/
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S. No. Particular Status 

1. Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints 

received 

NIL 

2. Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints 

dispose off 

NIL 

3. Number of Sexual Harassment Complaint 

beyond 90 days. 

Nil 

 

 

Post Closure of Financial Year 2023-24:  

 

The Company being under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) pursuant to the order of the 

National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, and as per the Section 17 read with Section 23 of the 

Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016, from the date of appointment of Interim Resolution Professional 

(IRP) Resolution Professional (RP), the management of the affairs of the Corporate Debtor shall vest in 

the interim resolution professional or Resolution Professional and the powers of the Board of Directors of 

the Corporate Debtor shall stand suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) 

or Resolution Professional (RP). Resolution Professional reported that no complaints were received or 

cases were filed under the said Act.   

 

 

44. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 

COURTS OR TRIBUNAL: 

 

During the Financial year under review, there are no significant and material orders passed by the 

regulators/courts/tribunal which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its operations 

in the future. 

 

Post Closure of Financial Year 2023-24:  

 

Subsequent to the close of the financial year and up to the date of this Report, the Corporate Insolvency 

Resolution Process (CIRP) has been initiated against Arshiya Limited under Section 7 of the Insolvency 

and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 by Punjab National Bank, the Financial Creditor, in respect of an alleged 

default of Rs. 193,24,35,349.59/- (Rupees One Hundred Ninety-Three Crore Twenty-Four Lakh Thirty-Five 

Thousand Three Hundred Forty-Nine and Fifty-Nine Paise). Arshiya Limited, being the Corporate 

Guarantor of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited (ANFL), became subject to CIRP after ANFL’s loan account 
was classified as a Non-Performing Asset (NPA) on 30.09.2014. In view of this default, Punjab National 

Bank filed an application for initiation of CIRP against Arshiya Limited on 20.08.2019. 

On 23.04.2024, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench, admitted the 
application filed by the Financial Creditor under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code and 

appointed Mr. Nitin Vishwanath Panchal (IBBI Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00777/2017-



 
 

55 

 

2018/11350) as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP). Upon admission, the management of the 

Company vested with the IRP in accordance with the provisions of the Code, and all powers of the Board 

of Directors, including the management of affairs of the Company, became exercisable by the IRP during 

the CIRP period. 

Subsequently, an appeal was filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT), 
Principal Bench, by a suspended Director of Arshiya Limited challenging the order passed by the NCLT. 

On 30.04.2024, during the first hearing, the Hon’ble NCLAT granted an interim stay on the constitution of 

the Committee of Creditors (CoC), based on the submissions of the appellant that a resolution proposal 

was being considered with the largest member of the lending consortium, Punjab National Bank. Further 

hearings were held on 15.05.2024 and 10.07.2024, during which the appellant submitted fresh proposals 

for consideration by Punjab National Bank. However, on 16.07.2024, the Hon’ble NCLAT vacated the 
interim stay as the settlement proposals submitted by the suspended Director were rejected, and the 

constitution of the CoC was allowed to proceed. 

The IRP constituted the Committee of Creditors on 31.07.2024, and the first meeting of the CoC was held 

on 08.08.2024. During this meeting, the CoC appointed Mr. Pankaj Mahajan (IBBI Registration No. 

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017-2018/11420) as the Resolution Professional (RP) in place of the IRP, to 

carry out the functions under the Code for the remainder of the CIRP period. 

 

45. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:  

 

Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 deals with the overall maximum managerial remuneration and 

managerial Remuneration in case of absence or inadequacy of profits. According to this section, the total 

managerial remuneration payable by a public company, to its directors, including managing director and 

whole-time director, and its manager in respect of any financial year shall not exceed the prescribed limit.  

 

The details with respect to the remuneration of directors and employees as required under Section 197 of 

the Act and Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 is annexed as ‘Annexure – VII’. 
 

46. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AS ON THE CLOSURE OF FINANCIAL YEAR 

As on March 31, 2024, the number of employees of the Company stood as 21, the category is mentioned 

below: 

Category Number of Employees 

Female 5 

Male 16 

Transgender NIL 
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47. STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, a casual vacancy arose in the office 

of the Statutory Auditors of the Company consequent to the resignation of M/s N. A. Shah Associates 

LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 116560W/W100149), with effect from August 14, 

2023. 

 

Consequent thereto, the Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on August 14, 2023, upon 

the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment of ARTHA & Associates, 

Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 138552W), to fill the said casual vacancy, subject to the 

approval of the Members. 

 

The Members of the Company, at the 42nd Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2023, approved 

the appointment of M/s ARTHA & Associates as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five 

(5) consecutive years, commencing from the conclusion of the 42nd Annual General Meeting until the 

conclusion of the 47th Annual General Meeting to be held in the financial year 2028–29, at such 

remuneration as may be determined by the Board of Directors from time to time. 

 

The Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they satisfy the criteria for appointment and are not disqualified 

from being appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company under the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the rules made thereunder. 

 

48. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, every listed company is required 

to annex with its Board’s Report a Secretarial Audit Report issued by a Practising Company Secretary. 
 

In compliance with the above requirements, the Board of Directors on the recommendation of Audit 

committee, at its first meeting of the financial year 2025–26 held on May 30, 2023, appointed M/s. Abid 

& Co., Practising Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for conducting the 

Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2023-2024. 

 

Post Closure of the financial year 2023-24:  

 

Subsequent to the closure of the Financial Year, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has 

been initiated against the company vide NCLT, Mumbai Bench order dated April 23, 2024, the Resolution 

Professional in exercise of the powers vested under Regulation 17 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016 has rescinded/ discontinued the appointment of M/s. Aabid & Co., as a Secretarial Auditor of the 

company for the Financial Year 2023-24, along with their Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year 

2023- on February 25, 2026. Further, on the same day, M/s. Loveneet Handa & Associates, (Peer Review 

No. 5316/2023), was appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2023–24. 

The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 issued by Loveneet Handa & Associates, Company Secretaries for 

the Financial Year 2023–24. The said report is annexed herewith and forms an integral part of the Resolution 

Professional Report. 
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Annexure VIII: MR-3 Secretarial Audit Report 

 

49. INTERNAL AUDITOR 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has appointed M/S. 

Ronen Joshi & Associates., Chartered Accountants, as Internal Auditors of the Company for the FY 2023-

24 in the Board Meeting held on August 14, 2023 based on the recommendation of Audit Committee.  

Post Closure of the financial year 2023-24:  

 

Subsequent to the closure of the Financial Year, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has 

been initiated against the company vide its NCLT, Mumbai Bench order dated April 23, 2024, the 

Resolution Professional in exercise of the powers vested under Regulation 17 of the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 has rescinded/ discontinued the appointment of M/s. Ronen Joshi & Associates as 

an Internal Auditor of the company for the Financial Year 2023-24, along with their Internal Audit Report 

for the Financial Year 2023-24 on February 25, 2026. Further, on the same day, M/s. Anupam Parashar 

& Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 023779C), was appointed as the Internal Auditor of the Company for 

the Financial Year 2023–24. 

The Internal Audit Report issued by M/s Anupam Parashar & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 023779C) 

for the Financial Year 2023–24. 

50. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON EVERY 

QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMER MADE BY 

THE AUDITOR IN THE AUDIT REPORT: 

 

By the Statutory Auditor: 

 

Since the Company is under CIRP, the Resolution Professional is unable to give any explanation on the 

qualification, reservation or Adverse Remarks or disclaimer made by the auditor in the Audit Report. 

However, the audit report itself is explanatory to its qualification, reservation or Adverse Remarks or 

disclaimer. 

 

By the Secretarial Auditor: 

 

In the Secretarial Audit Report issued for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the following 

qualifications / observations were reported in respect of Arshiya Limited: 

 

1. The Company did not submit the Secretarial Compliance Report to the Stock Exchanges 

within the prescribed timeline, as required under Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

2. Only draft minutes of the Board and Committee Meetings were made available for the 

period under review. Further, the minutes were not consecutively numbered, which is not 

in compliance with the requirements of Secretarial Standard–1 and Secretarial 

Standard–2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). 
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3. The Secretarial Auditor sought Form MBP-1 (Disclosure of Interest by Directors) and 

Form DIR-8 (Intimation of Disqualification) for the period under review; however, the 

same were not provided at the time of audit. 

 

4. Certain statutory and regulatory filings for the financial year 2023–24 were completed 

with delay or could not be completed within the prescribed timelines, due to procedural 

constraints arising around the initiation of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 

(CIRP), which commenced shortly after the close of the financial year. 

 

Resolution Professional’s response 

 

The Resolution Professional has taken note of the qualifications and observations made by the 

Secretarial Auditor. 

 

It is clarified that the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) commenced on April 23, 

2024, i.e., after the close of the financial year under review. Certain procedural gaps and delays 

in filings and documentation occurred around the transition period and were also impacted by 

limitations in access to records and administrative constraints. 

 

The Resolution Professional is in the process of regularising and completing the pending 

compliances, including documentation and filings, to the extent feasible and permissible under 

the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and applicable laws. 
By the Internal Auditor: 

 

The Internal Auditor has observed the following during FY 2023-24 

 

1. Going Concern & Financial Stress 

The Internal Auditor has observed that during FY 2023-24, the Company was facing 

significant financial stress, liquidity constraints and accumulated defaults. These 

conditions indicate material uncertainty which may cast doubt on the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, particularly in the absence of successful restructuring of 

borrowings and recovery of assets. 

2. Revenue Recognition & Related Party Dependence 

• Revenue from operations declined by approximately 47.45% during FY 2023-24. 

• A variance of Rs. 9.09 lakh was observed between contractual revenue computation 

and revenue recognised in the books. 

• A substantial portion of revenue is derived from related parties, resulting in high 

revenue concentration risk. 

• Customer confirmations and independent recoverability evidence were not 

consistently available, giving rise to potential risk under Ind AS 115. 

3. Interest Income & Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 
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• Interest income of Rs. 346.65 lakh has been recognised on loans granted to 

subsidiaries. 

• Certain subsidiaries were under financial stress during the year. 

• No corresponding ECL provision has been recognised under Ind AS 109, despite 

uncertainty regarding recoverability. 

 

4. Loans, Investments & Corporate Guarantees to Subsidiaries 

 

• Loans outstanding to subsidiaries aggregated over Rs. 29,000 lakh. 

• Corporate guarantees aggregating approx. Rs. 1,03,850 lakh were issued in favour of 

lenders of subsidiaries, some of which have been invoked. 

• Limited impairment and absence of detailed valuation analysis increase the risk of 

overstatement of assets and contingent liabilities. 

 

5. Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment and Inventory 

 

• Property, Plant & Equipment (WDV approx. Rs. 57,743 lakh) and inventory (Rs. 

16,506 lakh) continue to be carried at book value. 

• Despite existence of impairment indicators, detailed impairment testing under Ind AS 

36 was not evidenced. 

 

 

6. MVAT Refund Receivable 

 

• MVAT refund receivable of Rs. 1,684.55 lakh has been recognised, which is under 

litigation before the Hon’ble Bombay High Court. 
• Recoverability of the said amount is contingent upon favourable judicial outcome. 

 

7. Borrowings, Interest Defaults & Financial Liabilities 

• Interest defaults on secured borrowings amounting to approx. Rs. 94,269.79 lakh 

were observed during FY 2023-24. 

• Other financial liabilities increased due to accumulation of unpaid interest, pending 

finalisation of restructuring arrangements. 

8. Trade Payables & Statutory Dues 

• Trade payables include long outstanding balances, including MSME dues. 

• Statutory dues such as GST, TDS and PF remain unpaid along with interest, exposing 

the Company to penalties and regulatory action. 

9. HR, Payroll, ESOP & IT Controls 

• Gaps were noted in payroll and statutory reconciliations, ESOP documentation and IT 

general controls, indicating need for strengthening of internal control framework. 
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Response of the Resolution Professional (RP) 

The Resolution Professional has taken note of the observations made by the Internal Auditor 

for the financial year ended 31 March 2024. It is clarified that the Company was not under 

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) during FY 2023-24 and the said 

observations pertain to the period prior to commencement of CIRP. 

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the Company has been admitted into Corporate 

Insolvency Resolution Process under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016, and the management of the affairs of the Company has vested with the Resolution 

Professional. 

The Resolution Professional is in the process of examining the matters highlighted by the 

Internal Auditor, including issues relating to financial stress, borrowings, related party 

exposures, asset recoverability, statutory dues and internal control framework. Appropriate 

actions, corrective measures and accounting treatment, wherever required, shall be undertaken 

in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, 

applicable accounting standards and subject to the outcome of the CIRP. 

By the Cost Auditors: 

 

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under Section 148 (1) of the Act is not 

applicable to the Company. 

 

 

50. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR 

ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

 

During the year, there has been no case made or proceedings pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 

Code, 2016. Hence, the said clause is NOT APPLICABLE to the company. 

 

Post Closure of the financial year 2023-24:  

 

The Members are informed that, during the financial year, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution 

Process (CIRP) has been initiated against Arshiya Limited under Section 7 of the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 by Punjab National Bank, the Financial Creditor, in respect of an alleged 

default of Rs. 193,24,35,349.59/- (Rupees One Hundred Ninety-Three Crore Twenty-Four Lakh 

Thirty-Five Thousand Three Hundred Forty-Nine and Fifty-Nine Paise). Arshiya Limited, being the 

Corporate Guarantor of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited (ANFL), became subject to CIRP after 

ANFL’s loan account was classified as a Non-Performing Asset (NPA) on 30.09.2014. In view of this 

default, Punjab National Bank filed an application for initiation of CIRP against Arshiya Limited on 

20.08.2019. 

On 23.04.2024, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench, admitted the 
application filed by the Financial Creditor under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 

and appointed Mr. Nitin Vishwanath Panchal (IBBI Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00777/2017-
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2018/11350) as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP). Upon admission, the management of the 

Company vested with the IRP in accordance with the provisions of the Code, and all powers of the 

Board of Directors, including the management of affairs of the Company, became exercisable by the 

IRP during the CIRP period. 

Subsequently, an appeal was filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal 
(NCLAT), Principal Bench, by a suspended Director of Arshiya Limited challenging the order passed 

by the NCLT. On 30.04.2024, during the first hearing, the Hon’ble NCLAT granted an interim stay 

on the constitution of the Committee of Creditors (CoC), based on the submissions of the appellant 

that a resolution proposal was being considered with the largest member of the lending consortium, 

Punjab National Bank. Further hearings were held on 15.05.2024 and 10.07.2024, during which the 

appellant submitted fresh proposals for consideration by Punjab National Bank. However, on 

16.07.2024, the Hon’ble NCLAT vacated the interim stay as the settlement proposals submitted by the 

suspended Director were rejected, and the constitution of the CoC was allowed to proceed. 

The IRP constituted the Committee of Creditors on 31.07.2024, and the first meeting of the CoC was 

held on 08.08.2024. During this meeting, the CoC appointed Mr. Pankaj Mahajan (IBBI Registration 

No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017-2018/11420) as the Resolution Professional (RP) in place of the 

IRP, to carry out the functions under the Code for the remainder of the CIRP period. 

Since then, the CoC has held multiple meetings to oversee and supervise the CIRP in accordance with 

the provisions of the Code. During these meetings, the CoC has approved the Request for Resolution 

Plan (RFRP), the evaluation matrix for resolution applicants, and ratified various professional fees 

including statutory auditors, legal advisors, and transaction auditors. The CoC has also approved 

related party transactions, interim finance arrangements, inclusion of additional claims received by the 

RP, and grant of rights for operational use of Company assets to facilitate smooth functioning during 

the CIRP.  

Save and except as stated above, and subject to the outcome of the CIRP and orders to be passed by 

the Hon’ble NCLT, there have been no other material changes or commitments affecting the financial 
position of the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this Report. 

51. ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 

obtained the Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the financial year 2023-24 from a 

practicing Company Secretary. 

 

The Report confirms that the Company has, to the extent applicable, complied with all the 

provisions of the Companies Act, SEBI Listing Regulations, and other applicable statutory 

requirements during the year ended March 31, 2024. 

 

The said Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for FY 2023-24 is annexed herewith and forms 

an integral part of this Report as Annexure-IX. 
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52. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE 

TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN 

FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS 

THEREOF. 

 

During the Financial year under review, the company has not made any one-time Settlement with any 

party/ies. Further, there was no instance of valuation of amount for settlement of loan(s) from Banks and 

Financial Institutions during the financial year under review. 

 

53. AUDIT TRAIL IN THE ACCOUNTING SOFTWARE 

 

The Ministry of Company Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated March 24, 2021 and subsequent 

notification dated April 1, 2022, has made it mandatory for every company to fulfil the requirement of an 

audit trail feature in their accounting software from April 1st, 2023.  

 

As per the above-mentioned notification, the company has fulfilled the requirement for an audit trail 

feature in its accounting software during the reporting period. 

BRIEF ABOUT AUDIT TRAIL  

Audit Trail (also called audit log) is a security-relevant chronological record, set of records, and/or 

destination and source of records that provide documentary evidence of the sequence of activities that 

have affected at any time a specific operation, procedure, event, or device. An audit trail can further be 

described as a step-by-step sequential record that provides evidence of documented history of a 

transaction by which the accounting, trade details, or other financial data can be traced to their source. 

Audit trails are used to verify and track many types of transactions, including accounting transactions 

and trades in brokerage accounts. 

In accounting terms, it refers to documentation of detailed transactions supporting summary ledger 

entries. This documentation may be on paper or on electronic records. 

 

54. DESIGNATED PERSON FOR REPORTING OF SIGNIFICANCE BENEFICIARY OWNER 

 

Pursuant to the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated October 27, 2023, 

introducing Sub-Rules (4) to (8) in Rule 9 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Second 

Amendment Rules, 2023, every company is required to designate a person responsible for furnishing 

information to the Registrar with respect to beneficial interest in shares under the provisions of Section 

90 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Significant Beneficial Owners) Rules, 2018. 

 

During the reporting period, the Company does not have any individual who holds beneficial interest, 

directly or indirectly, in such a manner so as to qualify as a Significant Beneficial Owner (SBO) under the 

aforesaid provisions. Accordingly, no SBO-related declarations, filings, or disclosures were required to be 

made by the Company during the financial year. 

 

In compliance with Rule 9(4) of the amended Rules, the Company had designated Mr. Ajit Dabolkar, who 

was the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the company, as the responsible person for ensuring 

compliance with the SBO framework.  
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Post Closure of the financial year 2023-24:  

 

Subsequent to the close of the financial year, Mr. Ajit Dabolkar resigned from the position of Company 

Secretary and Compliance Officer with effect from August 01, 2024. Further, pursuant to the initiation of 

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) against the Company on April 23, 2024, the powers of 

the Board of Directors stand suspended and are being exercised by the Resolution Professional in 

accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

 

Accordingly, Mr. Pankaj Mahajan, Resolution Professional, is deemed to be the designated person 

responsible for ensuring compliance with the SBO framework and furnishing information to the Registrar 

under the applicable provisions. 

 

 

55. COMPLIANCE WITH THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961 

 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, vide Notification G.S.R. 357(E) dated May 30, 2025, introduced the 

Companies (Accounts) Second Amendment Rules, 2025, thereby amending the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014. These amendments, effective from July 14, 2025, mandate enhanced disclosures and 

compliance reporting with respect to the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. 

 

Accordingly, the Resolution Professional of the Company confirms that: 

 

The Company has duly complied with all the applicable provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, 

including but not limited to, the grant of paid maternity leave, nursing breaks, protection against 

dismissal during maternity leave, and crèche facilities (where applicable). The Company remains 

committed to maintaining a safe and inclusive workplace for women employees. 

 

 

56. DISCLOSURE OF OUTSTANDING DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES 

(MSMEs) 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 

Act, 2006, and the corresponding reporting obligations under the Companies Act, 2013, read with MCA 

Circular No. 01/2019 dated 21st January 2019, and the amendments reflected in Form MSME-1 and AOC-

4 instructions, the Company has identified suppliers registered under the MSMED Act. 

The following is the summary of disclosures pertaining to amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as 

on 31st March 2024: 

Particulars 
Amount (INR 

LAKHS) 

Principal amount remaining unpaid to MSME suppliers beyond 45 days from the 

date of acceptance 
260.09 

Interest due thereon as per provisions of the MSMED Act NIL 

Interest actually paid under Section 16 of the MSMED Act NIL 

Amount of further interest remaining unpaid as on the end of the year NIL 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-2024 
 

 

1. OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY: 

The Company lay great emphasis on adopting and practicing principles of good Corporate Governance 

with a view of achieving business excellence by enhancing long-term shareholder value and the interest 

of all its stakeholders through sound business decisions, prudent financial management and a high 

standard of business ethics. 

 

This report is prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), and the 

report contains the details of Corporate Governance systems and processes at Arshiya Limited (In CIRP). 

 

2. CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS (CIRP): 

 

Members are hereby informed that after the closure of financial year 2023-24, the Corporate Insolvency 

Resolution Process (CIRP) has been initiated against Arshiya Limited under Section 7 of the Insolvency 

and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 by Punjab National Bank, the Financial Creditor, in respect of an alleged 

default of Rs. 193,24,35,349.59/- (Rupees One Hundred Ninety-Three Crore Twenty-Four Lakh Thirty-

Five Thousand Three Hundred Forty-Nine and Fifty-Nine Paise). Arshiya Limited, being the Corporate 

Guarantor of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited (ANFL), became subject to CIRP after ANFL’s loan 
account was classified as a Non-Performing Asset (NPA) on 30.09.2014. In view of this default, Punjab 

National Bank filed an application for initiation of CIRP against Arshiya Limited on 20.08.2019. 

 

On 23.04.2024, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench, admitted the 
application filed by the Financial Creditor under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code and 

appointed Mr. Nitin Vishwanath Panchal (IBBI Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00777/2017-

2018/11350) as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP). Upon admission, the management of the 

Company vested with the IRP in accordance with the provisions of the Code, and all powers of the Board 

of Directors, including the management of affairs of the Company, became exercisable by the IRP during 

the CIRP period. 

 

Subsequently, an appeal was filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal 
(NCLAT), Principal Bench, by a suspended Director of Arshiya Limited challenging the order passed 

by the NCLT. On 30.04.2024, during the first hearing, the Hon’ble NCLAT granted an interim stay on 

the constitution of the Committee of Creditors (CoC), based on the submissions of the appellant that a 

resolution proposal was being considered with the largest member of the lending consortium, Punjab 

National Bank. Further hearings were held on 15.05.2024 and 10.07.2024, during which the appellant 

submitted fresh proposals for consideration by Punjab National Bank. However, on 16.07.2024, the 

Hon’ble NCLAT vacated the interim stay as the settlement proposals submitted by the suspended 

Director were rejected, and the constitution of the CoC was allowed to proceed. 

 

The IRP constituted the Committee of Creditors on 31.07.2024, and the first meeting of the CoC was 

held on 08.08.2024. During this meeting, the CoC appointed Mr. Pankaj Mahajan (IBBI Registration 

No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017-2018/11420) as the Resolution Professional (RP) in place of the 

IRP, to carry out the functions under the Code for the remainder of the CIRP period. 

 

Since then, the CoC has held multiple meetings to oversee and supervise the CIRP in accordance with 

the provisions of the Code. During these meetings, the CoC has approved the Request for Resolution 
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Plan (RFRP), the evaluation matrix for resolution applicants, and ratified various professional fees 

including statutory auditors, legal advisors, and transaction auditors. The CoC has also approved related 

party transactions, interim finance arrangements, inclusion of additional claims received by the RP, and 

grant of rights for operational use of Company assets to facilitate smooth functioning during the CIRP.  

 

3. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 

The Strenth of the Board of Arshiya Limited for the financial year 2023-2024 stands at six (6) 

Directors, details whereof are set out below.  

 

 

4. BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: 

 

During the period under review, the Board of Directors of the Company has conducted Five (05) meetings during the 
financial year under review. The maximum interval between any two meetings was well within the maximum permissible 
period of one hundred and twenty days. 
  

DIN Name of the Director Designation 

00226355 Ajay Shankarlal  Mittal Chairman & Managing Director-Executive Director 
09758394 Priya Madhukar  Kenkare Non-Executive Independent Director 
00703208 Archana A Mittal Joint Managing Director- Executive Director  
00049591 Ashishkumar Bairagra Non-Executive Independent Director 
00694160 Rishabh Shah Pankaj Non-Executive Independent Director 
02988628 Ved Prakash Non-Executive Independent Director 
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The followings Meetings of Board of Directors took place during the Financial Year under review:  
 

Name of 

Director 

Category of 

Directorship 

Number of 

Board 

meetings 

attended 

Attendance 

at the last 

AGM held on 

29.09.2023 for 

the financial 

year 2022-

2023) 

 

Directorship 

in other 

Listed 

Companies 

*Number of committee 

positions held in other 

public limited 

companies 

Chairman 

(Audit and 

Stakeholders 

Relationship 

Committee 

Members 

(Audit and 

Stakeholders 

Relationship 

Committee 

Ajay Shankarlal   
Mittal 

Executive 

Director -

Managing 

Director & 

Chairperson 

4 1 2 - 3 

Priya Madhukar 
Kenkare 

Non-Executive 

Independent 

Director 
5 1 1 - - 

Archana A Mittal 

Joint Managing 

Director- 

Executive 

Director  

4 - 1 - - 

Ashishkumar 

Bairagra 

Non-Executive 

Independent 

Director 

5 1 2 3 5 

Rishabh Shah 

Non-Executive 

Independent 

Director 

4 1 2 1 3 

Ved Prakash 

Non-Executive 

Independent 

Director 

4 1 1 - - 

 

*Only committee membership of the listed company is included. 
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5. COMMITTEES AND ITS MEETINGS  

 

During the financial year the following meetings of the committees held:  

 

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

 

The Composition of the Audit Committee for the financial year 2023-2024 is as follows:  

 
DIN Name of the Committee Member Designation in Committee Designation in Company 

00049591 Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra Chairperson & Member Non-Executive 
Independent Director 
 

00226355 Mr. Ajay S Mittal  Member Managing Director & 
Chairperson 

 

00694160 Mr. Rishabh Shah Pankaj Member Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

 

Terms of Reference 

 

Financial Reporting 

 

• Review the quarterly, half-yearly, and annual financial statements of the Company before submission 

to the Board. 

• Ensure that the financial statements comply with accounting standards, Companies Act, and other 

applicable legal requirements. 

 

Internal Controls & Risk Management 

 

• Monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems. 

• Review the functioning of the internal audit department and ensure that audit observations are 

addressed. 

• Oversee risk management policies and procedures adopted by the Company. 

 

External Audit 

 

• Recommend the appointment, reappointment, and removal of the statutory auditors. 

• Review the audit plan, audit observations, and management responses. 

• Approve audit fees and terms of engagement of the statutory auditors. 

 

Compliance & Related Party Transactions 

 

• Review compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and policies. 

• Monitor related party transactions and ensure they are in accordance with applicable regulations. 
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During the financial year 2023-2024 the following meetings of the audit committees were held: 

 
Date of the 
Meeting 

Total number of 
directors in the 
committee as on the 
date of the meeting 

Number of Directors 
Present (All directors 
including Independent 
director) 

No. of Independent 
Directors attending 
the meeting* 

No. of members attending 
the meeting (other than 
Board of Directors) 

30-05-2023 3 3 2 0 

14-08-2023 3 3 2 0 

09-11-2023 3 3 2 0 

21-02-2024 3 2 2 0 

 

Attendance of the Committee members: 

 
Name of the Director No. of Meetings held Attendance 

 

No. of meetings 
Attended 

 

% of attendance 

Mr. Ashishkumar 
Bairagra 

4 4 100 

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  
Mittal 

4 3 75 

Dr. Rishabh Shah Pankaj 4 4 100 

 
 

2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC) 

 

The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee for the financial year 2023-2024 is as follows:  

 
DIN Name of the Committee Member Designation in 

Committee 

Designation in 
Company 

 

00049591 Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra Chairperson & Member Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

00226355 Mr. Ajay Shankara Mittal Member Managing Director & 
Chairperson 

00694160 Mr. Rishabh Shah Pankaj  Member Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

 

Terms of Reference 

 

       Board and Senior Management Appointments 

 

• Identify and recommend individuals for appointment as Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs), 

and senior management positions. 

 

• Ensure proper evaluation of candidates’ qualifications, experience, and expertise before appointment. 
 

Remuneration Policy 

 

• Formulate the Company’s remuneration policy for Directors, KMPs, and other employees. 
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• Recommend the quantum and structure of remuneration, including salary, incentives, perquisites, and 

retirement benefits. 

 

• Review and approve compensation for Directors and senior management within the framework of 

applicable laws and regulations. 
 

Performance Evaluation 

 

• Define criteria and parameters for evaluating the performance of Directors, including Independent 

Directors. 

• Conduct periodic performance appraisals and provide recommendations to the Board. 

 

Succession Planning 

• Ensure proper succession planning for the Board and senior management positions. 

 

Other Responsibilities 

• Review and recommend policy matters related to employee stock options or other benefits. 

• Perform such other functions as may be delegated by the Board in accordance with the Companies Act, 

2013, and SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 

During the financial year 2023-2024 the following meetings of the NRC committee were held: 

 
Date of the 
Meeting 

Total number of 
directors in the 
committee as on the 
date of the meeting 

Number of Directors 
Present (All directors 
including Independent 
director) 

No. of Independent 
Directors attending 
the meeting* 

No. of members attending 
the meeting (other than 
Board of Directors) 

30-05-2023 3 3 2 0 

 

Attendance of the Committee members: 

 
Name of the Director No. of Meetings held Attendance 

 

No. of meetings 
Attended 

 

% of attendance  

Mr. Ashishkumar 
Bairagra 

1 1 100 

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  
Mittal 

1 1 100 

Mr. Rishabh Shah 
Pankaj  

1 1 100 

 

 
  



72 
 

 

3. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (RMC) 

 

The composition of Risk Management Committee for the financial year 2023-2024 is as follows:  

 
DIN Name of the Committee 

Members 

Designation in Committee Designation in Company 

00226355 Mr. Ajay S Mittal Chairperson & Member Managing Director & Chairperson 

02988628 Mr. Ved Prakash Member Non-Executive Independent Director 
00694160 Mr. Rishabh Shah Pankaj Member Non-Executive Independent Director 
00049591 Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra Member Non-Executive Independent Director 

 

Terms of Reference 

 

Risk Policy & Framework 

 

• Formulate and recommend the Company’s risk management policy to the Board. 
• Establish the risk management framework to identify, assess, monitor, and mitigate key business 

risks. 

 

Risk Identification & Assessment 

 

• Identify and assess operational, financial, strategic, and compliance risks that may impact the 

Company. 

• Review the adequacy of risk management systems and processes. 

 

Monitoring & Mitigation 

 

• Monitor the implementation of risk mitigation plans and controls. 

• Ensure that risk management practices are integrated into business processes and decision-making. 

 

Other Responsibilities 

 

• Perform any other functions as may be delegated by the Board or required under applicable laws, 

regulations, and guidelines. 

 

During the financial year 2023-2024 the following meetings of the NRC committee were held: 

 
Date of the 
Meeting 

Total number of 
directors in the 
committee as on the 
date of the meeting 

Number of Directors 
Present (All directors 
including Independent 
director) 

No. of Independent 
Directors attending 
the meeting* 

No. of members attending 
the meeting (other than 
Board of Directors) 

14-08-2023 4 4 3 0 

09-11-2023 4 3 2 0 

21-02-2024 4 2 2 0 
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Attendance of the Committee members: 

 
Name of the Director No. of Meetings held Attendance 

 

No. of meetings Attended 

 

% of attendance  

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  
Mittal 

3 2 66.66 

Mr. Ved Prakash 3 2 66.66 

Mr. Rishabh Shah 
Pankaj 

3 2 66.66 

Mr. Ashishkumar 
Bairagra 

3 3 100 

 

 

4. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE (SRC) 

 

The composition of Stakeholder Relationship Committee for the financial year 2023-2024 is as follows:  

 
DIN Name of the Committee Members Designation in Committee Designation in 

Company 

00694160 Mr. Rishabh Shah Pankaj Chairperson & Member Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

00226355 Mr. Ajay Shankarlal Mittal Member Chairman & Managing 
Director 

00049591 Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra Member Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

 

Terms of Reference 

 

Grievance Redressal 

 

• Review and resolve complaints and grievances of shareholders, debenture holders, and other security 

holders related to transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual reports, dividends, and other related 

matters. 

• Ensure timely response and resolution of queries received from stakeholders. 

 

Monitoring of Transfers and Transactions 

 

• Oversee the transfer, transmission, and dematerialization of shares and securities. 

• Ensure compliance with statutory requirements and internal policies related to shareholder 

transactions. 

 

Investor Communication 

 

• Ensure that stakeholders are informed of corporate actions, financial results, and other key 

information in compliance with SEBI regulations and corporate governance requirements. 
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Other Responsibilities 

 

• Perform any other functions as may be delegated by the Board or required under applicable laws and 

regulations. 

 

During the financial year 2023-2024 the following meetings of the SRC committee were held: 

 
Date of the 
Meeting 

Total number of 
directors in the 
committee as on the 
date of the meeting 

Number of Directors 
Present (All directors 
including Independent 
director) 

No. of Independent 
Directors attending 
the meeting* 

No. of members attending 
the meeting (other than 
Board of Directors) 

09-11-2023 3 3 2 1 

21-02-2024 3 2 2 1 

 

 

Attendance of the Committee members: 

 
Name of the Director No. of Meetings 

held 

Attendance 

 

No. of meetings Attended 

 

% of attendance  

Mr. Rishabh Shah Pankaj 2 2 100 

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal  Mittal 2 1 50 

Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra 2 2 100 

 

5. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE(CSR): 

 

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee for the financial year 2023-2024 is as 

follows:  

 
DIN Name of the Committee 

Member 

 

Designation in Committee Designation in Company 

00703208 Mrs. Archana A Mittal Chairperson & Member Joint Managing Director 
 

00226355 Mr. Ajay S Mittal Member Managing Director & Chairperson 

 

00694160 Mr. Rishabh Shah Pankaj Member Non-Executive Independent 
Director 
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Terms of Reference 

 

CSR Policy Formulation 

 

• Formulate and recommend the CSR policy of the Company to the Board, ensuring alignment with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

• Review and update the CSR policy periodically, keeping in mind the evolving regulatory requirements 

and social impact objectives. 

 

Project Selection and Implementation 

 

• Recommend and monitor CSR projects and programs to be undertaken by the Company. 

• Ensure projects are aligned with the approved CSR policy and objectives. 

 

Budgeting and Fund Allocation 

 

• Recommend the annual CSR budget and ensure funds are utilized effectively for approved CSR 

activities. 

• Monitor compliance with the statutory spending requirements under Section 135 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

 

Other Responsibilities 

 

• Perform any other functions as may be delegated by the Board or as required under applicable laws 

and regulations. 

 

During the financial year 2023–2024, no meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 

was held. 

 

 

6. SEPARATE MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRCETORS 

 

During the financial year 2023-2024, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors has been convened by 

the company on October 16, 2023, without the attendance of non-independent directors and members of the 

management. 

 

7. PROCEDURE OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 

The Company's guidelines relating to Board meetings are applicable to Committee meetings. Each Committee 

has the authority to engage external experts, advisors, and counsels as it considers appropriate to assist in its 

functioning. The composition and terms of reference of all Committees are intended to be in compliance with 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and Listing Regulations, as applicable. 
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8. INVESTOR GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL:  

 

Statement of Various complaints received and cleared by the Company during the year ended on 31st March 

2024: 

 

Sr. No. Subject Received Cleared Pending 

1 Non-Receipt of Share -- -- -- 

2 Non-Receipt of Dividend -- -- -- 

3 Non-Receipt of Annual Report -- -- -- 

4 Non-Receipt of Exchange -- -- - 

5 Scores / Stock Exchange -- -- -- 

6 Other -- -- -- 

  

Total 

-- -- -- 

 

8. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR DIRECTORS 

 

During the financial year 2023–2024, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee had in place a framework 

for evaluation of the performance of Directors, including Independent Directors. The performance evaluation 

was carried out on the basis of parameters such as attendance, understanding of the business, communication 

among Board members, effective participation in meetings, domain knowledge, adherence to the Code of 

Conduct and alignment with the Company’s vision and strategic objectives. The said framework and 

evaluation process were in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable laws. 

 

 

9. REMUNERATION POLICY 

 

The Company's Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), and other employees 

is designed to reward performance based on periodic review of achievements. The policy is in consonance 

with prevailing industry practices. 

 

The Company paid remuneration to the following KMP during the period under review: 

(Rs. In lacs) 

Name of the Director/Key 

Managerial Personnel 

Designation Salaries, Perquisite’s 

contribution to 

Provident Fund and 

Superannuation 

Commission Sitting 

Fees 

Total 

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Sodani Chief 

Financial 

Officer 

70.36 - - 70.36 
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Mr. Ajit Dabholkar Company 

Secretary 

43.92 - - 43.92 

 

 

10. REMUNERATION OF THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

2023- 24 

 

Name of the Director Category of 

Director 

Type of Meeting Sitting 

Fees 

TDS @ 

10% 

Net 

Amount 

Ashish Bairagra Non-Executive 

Independent 

Director 

Board Meeting 1,00,000 10,000 90,000 

Ashish Bairagra Non-Executive 

Independent 

Director 

Audit committing 

meeting 

20,000 2,000 18,000 

Rishabh Shah Non-Executive 

Independent 

Director 

Board Meeting 60,000 6,000 54,000 

Rishabh Shah Non-Executive 

Independent 

Director 

Audit committing 

meeting 

20,000 2,000 18,000 

Ved Prakash Non-Executive 

Independent 

Director 

Board Meeting 40,000 4,000 36,000 

Priya Madhukar 

kenkare 

Non-Executive 

Independent 

Director 

Board Meeting 1,00,000 10,000 90,000 

 

11. SHAREHOLDING OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AS ON 31ST MARCH 2024 

 

 

Sr No. Name of the Director No. of shares held 

1. Priya Kenkare NIL 

2. Ashishkumar Bairagra NIL 

3. Rishabh Shah NIL 

4. Ved Prakash NIL 

12. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

 

(a) Details of location and time of holding of last three AGMs: 

 

Financial Year Venue Date Time (IST) Nos. of Special 

Resolutions 

passed 
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2020-21 (40th AGM) Through  Video 

Conferencing (“VC”) / Other 

Audio-Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) 

27th September 

2021 

11:30 A.M. None 

2021-22 (41st 

AGM) 

Through  Video 

Conferencing (“VC”) / Other 

Audio-Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) 

27th 

September 

2022 

03.00 P.M. One (01) 

2022-23 (42nd 

AGM) 

Through  Video 

Conferencing (“VC”) / Other 

Audio-Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) 

29th 

September 

2023 

03.00 P.M. Two (02) 

 

(b) Resolutions passed through Postal Ballot:  

No resolutions were passed through postal ballot during the financial year 2023-24.  

 

13. CORE SKILL / EXPERTISE / COMPETENCIES AVAILABLE WITH THE BOARD: 

 

The Board of the Company comprises qualified members with diverse skills, expertise, and competencies that 

enable effective governance. The key areas of expertise generally include leadership, strategic planning, 

industry experience, financial management, risk management, and corporate governance. 

 

Matrix Skill Name of Directors 

Ajay S 

Mittal 
Archana A 

Mittal 

Ashishkumar 

Bairagra 
Rishabh Shah Ved Prakash 

Priya 

Kenkare 

Business 

Strategy 
✓ ✓ ✓ - ✓ ✓ 

Industry 

Experience 
✓ ✓ ✓ - ✓ ✓ 

 

General 

Management 
✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 

Accounting 

/Auditing 
✓ ✓ ✓ - ✓ ✓ 

 

Finance ✓ ✓ ✓ - ✓ ✓ 

Legal / 

Secretarial 

Compliance 

✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ - ✓ 

Human 

Resource 

Management 

✓ ✓ ✓ - ✓ ✓ 
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Risk 

Management 
✓ ✓ ✓ - ✓ ✓ 

 

Information 

Technology 
✓ - ✓ - - ✓ 

 



80 
 

 

14. FAMILIARISATION OF PROGRAMMES FOR BOARD MEMBERS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has put in place a Familiarisation 

Programme for Independent Directors with the objective of acquainting them with the Company’s business, 
industry, organisational structure, roles, rights, responsibilities and obligations of Independent Directors. 

During the financial year 2023-24, Arshiya Limited conducted familiarisation programmes for its Independent 

Directors. The programme covered, inter alia, an overview of the Company’s operations, business model, 
strategic objectives, financial performance, risk management framework, internal control systems, regulatory 

environment applicable to the Company and the roles and responsibilities of Independent Directors under 

applicable laws. 

The familiarisation programme is aimed at enabling Independent Directors to effectively discharge their duties 

and contribute meaningfully to the Board and Committee deliberations. 

15. CODE OF CONDUCT: 

The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct and Our Code (collectively referred to as “the 
Codes”), applicable to all Directors and employees of the Company. The Codes have been formulated in 
accordance with the provisions of Regulation 17(5) read with Schedule II (Part D) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and lay down the principles and standards for 

ethical conduct of business and compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. 

The Codes reflect the core values of the Company, namely Customer Value, Ownership Mindset, Respect, 

Integrity, One Team and Excellence, and provide guidance and support to Directors and employees in the 

ethical and responsible discharge of their duties. 

Note: 

Subsequent to the closure of the financial year 2023-24, the Company was admitted into the Corporate 

Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) with effect from April 23, 2024. Accordingly, from the date of 
appointment of the Interim Resolution Professional / Resolution Professional, the powers of the Board of 

Directors stand suspended in terms of Section 17 read with Section 23 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016. 

16. SUCCESSION PLANNING: 

The Company believes that sound succession plans for the senior leadership are very important for creating a 

robust future for the Company. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee work along with the Human 

Resource team of the Company for a structured leadership succession plan. 

 

17. SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 

Considering the requirement of skill sets on the Board, eminent people who have an independent standing 

in their respective field / profession and who can effectively contribute to the Company's business and 

policy decisions are considered by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, for appointment, as 

an Independent Director on the Board. The Committee inter alia considers qualification, positive 

attributes, area of expertise and number of Directorship(s) and Membership(s) held in various 

committees of other companies by such person in accordance with the Company's Policy for selection 

of Directors and determining Directors' independence. 
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The Board considers the Committee's recommendation and takes appropriate decisions. Every 

Independent Director, at the first meeting of the Board in which he/she participates as a Director and 

thereafter at the first meeting of the Board in every financial year, gives a declaration that he/she meets 

the criteria of independence as provided under the law and that he/she is not aware of any circumstance 

or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact his / her ability 

to discharge his / her duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence. 

 

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfilled the conditions specified in the Listing 

Regulations and are independent of the management. 

 

18. DISCLOSURES: 

 

a. Materially Significant related party transactions: 

During the financial year 2023–24, the Company did not enter into any materially significant related party 

transactions which could have had a potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large, in terms of 

Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

The particulars of transactions entered into by the Company with its related parties, in the ordinary course of 

business and on an arm’s length basis, are disclosed in Note No. 56 to the Notes to Accounts forming part of 

the Annual Report. 

 

b. Management Disclosures: 

During the financial year 2023-24 there were no instances requiring disclosure of any such transactions having 

a conflict with the interests of the Company. Hence, the Senior Management Personnel of the Company have 

not made any disclosures as required in Regulation 26(5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, in respect of material financial and commercial transactions in which they 

had personal interest that could potentially conflict with the interests of the Company. 

 

c. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company 

by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital 

markets, during the last 3 years: 

 

The Company has made all efforts to comply with the requirements of the Listing Agreement with the Stock 

Exchanges and the regulations and guidelines prescribed by SEBI. However, There were no instances of 

non-compliance, and no penalties, strictures or warnings were imposed on the Company by any Stock 

Exchange, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or any other statutory authority on any 

matter related to capital markets during the last three years. 

 

d. Risk Management Framework: 

The Company has adopted a Risk Assessment Procedure to provide a structured approach for identifying and 

managing potential events that may impact the business. The procedure is designed to help management 

evaluate risks, manage them within the Company’s risk appetite, and provide reasonable assurance regarding 

the achievement of business objectives. 
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e. Vigil Mechanism: 

The Company has established a vigil mechanism to enable Directors and employees to report genuine concerns 

or grievances in a secure and confidential manner. The mechanism is designed to provide direct access to the 

Audit Committee for any personnel seeking to report such concerns. 

 

f. Independent Director Compliance: 

 

During the financial year 2023-24, all the Independent Directors of the Company fulfilled the criteria of 

independence as prescribed under Regulation 16(1)(b) and Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Board also took note of the declarations submitted by 

the Independent Directors confirming their independence and compliance with the applicable provisions of 

the said Regulations. 

 

g. Mandatory Recommendations by the Board 

 

There were no mandatory recommendations made by the Board of Directors or its Committees during the 

financial year 2023-24 requiring compliance or reporting under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

h. Sexual Harassment Complaints 

 

During the financial year 2023-24, no complaints were received or pending relating to sexual harassment of 

women at the workplace. 

 

i. Directors’ Disqualification Status 

 

None of the Directors are known to be disqualified or debarred from being appointed as Directors of the 

Company. However, the Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors, issued pursuant to Regulation 

34(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, has not been received from the Directors due to the 

suspension of the Board. 

 

j. Fund Raising 

 

No funds have been raised through preferential allotment or private placement during the financial year 

2023-2024. 

 

k. Statutory Auditor Fees 

 

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has paid Rs. 49.50 Lakhs (Rupees Forty-Nine Lakhs 

Fifty Thousand) to Statutory Auditor including to all network entities of the Auditor. 
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19. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 

 

Website - All the information and disclosures required to be disseminated as per 

Regulation 46(2) of the Listing Regulations and Companies Act are being 

posted at Company’s website: http://www.arshiyalimited.com/  

 

- The official news released and presentations to the institutional investors or 

analysts, if any, are disseminated to the Stock Exchange at www.nseindia.com 

and www.bseindia.com and the same is also uploaded on the website of the 

company http://www.arshiyalimited.com/  

 

Quarterly 

Results  

The company communicates the stock exchanges about the quarterly financial results 

within 30 minutes of the conclusion of the Board meeting in which the same is 

approved.  

 

Designated e-

mail address 

for investor 

services 

To serve the investors better and as required under Listing Regulations, the dedicated/ 

designated e-mail address for investors communication is info@arshiyalimited.com  

 

 

20. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 

 

Annual General Meeting: Date, time and The 43rd Annual General Meeting of the 

venue Company i s  b e i n g  c on d u c t e d  th r ou gh  

 VC/OAVM on Friday, 27th Day of March 2026. At 

12:30 P.M. 

 
 In a c c o r d a n ce  with the p r o v i s io ns  of 

 Secretarial Standards-2 on General 

 Meetings issued by the Institute of 

 Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) 
  read with Guidance/ Clarification dated 

 April 15, 2020, the proceedings of the 

 AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at 

 the Registered Office of the Company which shall 

be the deemed venue of the 

AGM. 

http://www.arshiyalimited.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.arshiyalimited.com/
mailto:info@arshiyalimited.com
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Financial Year The financial year of the Company is for a period 

of 12 months from 1st April 2023 

to 31st March 2024 

 

Date of Book Closure 21st March 2026 to 27th March 2026 

 (both days inclusive) 

Financial Calendar (Tentative) 

Results for Quarter ending 30.06.2023 

Results for Quarter ending 30.09.2023 

Results for Quarter ending 31.12.2023 

Results for Quarter ending 31.03.2024 

Results for Quarter ending 30.06.2023- 

2nd week of August 2023 

  

Results for Quarter ending 30.09.2023- 

2nd Week of November 2023 

 

Results for Quarter ending 31.12.2023- 

2nd Week of February 2024 

 

Results for Quarter ending 31.03.2024- 

2nd Week of May 2024 

 

Listing on Stock Exchange The Company's shares are listed on Bombay 

Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock 

Exchange of India Limited. 

 

 

Script Code/SYMBOL 506074 on BSE Ltd.,  

ARSHIYA on NSE 

ISIN Number INE968D01022 

 

21. INVESTOR SERVICES: 

The Company has appointed M/s Bigshare Services Private Limited, whose address is given below, as 

its Registrar and Transfer Agents. The Registrar handles all matters relating to the shares of the Company 

including transfer, transmission of shares, dematerialization of share certificates, subdivision/ 

consolidation of share certificates and investor grievances. 

 

Bigshare Services Private Limited  

S6 – 2 Pinnacle Business Park, Mahakali Caves 

Road, Next to Ahura Centre, Andheri (E), 

Mumbai – 400 093 

Tel: 91 22 62638200 

Fax: +91 22 62638299 

E-mail: info@bigshareonline.com  

  

mailto:info@bigshareonline.com
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22. SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM: 

All the transfers received are processed by Registrar and Transfer Agents. Share transfers are registered 

and returned within maximum of 15 days from the date of lodgment if documents are complete in all 

respects. In case the shares are transferred through Demat mode, the procedure is adopted as stated in 

Depositories Act, 1996. 

 

23. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES: 

 

The Company's shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic form. The Company has established 

through its Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, connectivity with National Securities Depository 

Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL). As on 31st March 2024, 99.80% of 

the equity shares have been dematerialized. 

 

Position of dematerialized shares for the year 2023-24. 

 

Particulars No. of Shares Percentage 

Shares in Dematerialized 

Form 

26,29,60,064 99.80 

Shares in Physical Form 5,15,851 0.20 

Total Shares 26,34,75,915 100.00 

 

24. RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT REPORT: 

25.  

As stipulated by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), a qualified practicing Company Secretary 

carries out a Secretarial Audit for reconciliation of the total admitted capital with National Securities 

Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) with the total issued 

and listed capital of the Company. The said audit is carried out on a quarterly basis, and the reconciliation 

reports for all four quarters of the financial year 2023–24, namely quarter ended June 30, 2023; 

September 30, 2023; December 31, 2023; and March 31, 2024, were duly prepared and submitted within 

the prescribed timelines to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, where the equity 

shares of the Company are listed. 

 

26. ADOPTION OF MANDATORY AND DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS: 

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of Regulation 34 of the Listing 

Regulations. The Company has not adopted any discretionary requirements of the Listing Regulations.  

 

27. AUDIT QUALIFICATION: 

 

Since the Company is presently undergoing the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the 

provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, and the powers of the Board of Directors and the 

Management stand suspended, the Resolution Professional is not in a position to provide independent 

explanations or comments on the qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers, if any, made by 

the Statutory Auditors in their Audit Report. 

 

The Audit Report, however, is self-explanatory with respect to the nature and reasons for such qualifications, 
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reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers. 

 

28. REPORTING OF INTERNAL AUDITOR: 

The company has appointed M/S. Ronen Joshi & Associates., Chartered Accountants, as Internal Auditors of the 
Company for the FY 2023-24 in the Board Meeting held on August 14, 2023 based on the recommendation of Audit 
Committee. 
 
Note: Subsequent to the initiation of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) against the Company 
pursuant to the order dated April 23, 2024 passed by the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, and in 
exercise of the powers vested with the Resolution Professional under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016, the appointment of Ronen Joshi & Associates as the Internal Auditor of the Company for the Financial 
Year 2023-24, along with their Internal Audit Report for the said financial year, was rescinded/discontinued. 

Further, the Resolution Professional approved the appointment of Anupam Parashar & Co., Chartered Accountants 
(FRN: 023779C), as the Internal Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24, vide approval dated 
February 25, 2026, and the same was duly intimated to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
in accordance with the applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

Accordingly, the Internal Audit Report for the Financial Year 2023-24 issued by M/s Anupam Parashar & Co., 
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 023779C) forms the basis of internal audit reporting for the said financial year. 

The Internal Audit Report issued by M/s Anupam Parashar & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 023779C) for the 
Financial Year 2023-24. 

 

29. ANNUAL REPORT: 

 

The Annual Report containing, inter alia, the Audited Financial Statements, Resolution Professional’s Report, 
Auditors’ Report and other important information is circulated to the Members and all other persons entitled 
thereto. The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report. 

 

The Annual Report is also available in downloadable form on the website of the Resolution Professional at 

Arshiya Limited (www.arshiyalimited.com) and on the websites of the Stock Exchanges, i.e., BSE Limited 

(www.bseindia.com) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (www.nseindia.com). 

 

30. LETTERS TO INVESTORS: 

 

Letters were sent to the shareholders as per records, for claiming unclaimed / unpaid dividend / interest 

on fixed deposits / dematerialization of shares / updating PAN, email address and bank account details. 

 

Members who are yet to register their email address, PAN details, address, bank details etc. are requested 

to register by clicking at the web link provided by Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at 

investor@bigshareonline.com. 

 

The Company has also sent intimations to the shareholders holding shares in physical form, informing 

them about SEBI's mandate to permit transfer of shares only in dematerialized form w.e.f. April 1, 2019. 

 

NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS): NEAPS is a web-based application 

designed by NSE for corporates. All periodical and other compliance filings are filed electronically on 

http://www.arshiyalimited.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
mailto:investor@bigshareonline.com
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NEAPS. 

 

BSE Listing Centre (Listing Centre): BSE's Listing Centre is a web-based application designed for 

corporates. All periodical and other compliance filings are filed electronically on the Listing Centre. 

 

31. OUTSTANDING GDRS/ ADRS/ WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE 

INSTRUMENTS: 

 

The Company does not have any outstanding Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) or American Depository 

Receipts (ADRs) as on the end of the financial year 2023-24. 

 

During the financial year, no GDRs or ADRs were issued or converted, and accordingly, there was no 

impact on the Equity Share Capital of the Company. The Company continues to monitor compliance with 

applicable regulations concerning GDRs/ADRs, if any, and ensures that any future issuance or conversion is 

undertaken in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and other regulatory requirements. 

 

32. HIGH/LOW OF MARKET PRICE OF THE COMPANY’S SHARESTRADED ON 

THE STOCK EXCHANGE UP TO 31ST MARCH 2025: 

 

Period Arshiya’s Share Price BSE SENSEX 

High Low High Low 

April 2023 5.89 5.76 61,209.46 60,507.83 

May 2023 5.92 5.66 62,876.77 62,401.02 

June 2023 4.89 4.71 64,768.58 64,068.44 

July 2023 4.25 4.25 66,598.42 65,998.90 

August 2023 4.81 4.81 65,277.04 64,723.63 

September 2023 4.46 4.46 66,151.65 65,570.38 

October 2023 3.80 3.56 64,452.32 63,812.53 

November 2023 3.79 3.75 67,069.89 66,610.35 

December 2023 8.52 8.52 72,417.01 72,082.64 

January 2024 6.70 6.70 71,851.39 70,846.04 

February 2024 9.62 9.43 72,730.00 72,099.32 

March 2024 6.31 6.25 74,190.31 73,120.33 

  



88 
 

 

 

33. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31ST MARCH 2024: 

 

Category No. of Shares Percentage (%) 

Promoter and promoter 

Group (A) 

37871225 14.37 

Public Shareholding (B) 225604690 85.63 

Mutual funds 25000 0.01 

Banks 2775000 1.05 

Foreign Portfolio Investors 

Category I 

130548 0.05 

State Government/ Governor  40000 0.02 

Resident Individuals 155765749 59.12 

NON RESIDENT INDIANS 

(NRIs) 

1998559 0.76 

Foreign Nationals 675000 0.26 

Foreign Companies 2047495 0.78 

Body Corporates 45402967 17.23 

HUF 11043910 4.19 

Others 40133 0.02 

Employees 650352 0.25 

Directors 6000 0.002 

Key Managerial Personnel 18521 0.01 

Clearing Members 4985456 1.89 

Total A+B 263475915 100 

 

34. SECRETARIAL AUDIT: 

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of Audit committee, at its first meeting of the financial year 2023–
24 held on May 30, 2023, appointed M/s. Abid & Co., Practising Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor of 
the Company for conducting the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2023-2024. 

Note: Subsequently, pursuant to the initiation of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) against the 
Company vide order dated April 23, 2024 passed by the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, and in 
exercise of the powers vested under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, the Resolution Professional 
rescinded/discontinued the appointment of M/s. Abid & Co. as Secretarial Auditor for the Financial Year 2023–24, 
along with their Secretarial Audit Report for the said financial year. 

Thereafter, the Resolution Professional appointed M/s. Loveneet Handa & Associates (Peer Review No. 5316/2023), 
Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2023–24 on February 25, 
2026 

The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 issued by M/s. Loveneet Handa & Associates for the Financial Year 
2023–24 is annexed herewith and forms an integral part of the Resolution Professional’s Report. 
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35. RE-APPOINTMENT AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS: 

 

During the Financial Year 2023-24, no re-appointment and appointments of directors has taken place in the 

company.  

 

Note: The Company being under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) pursuant to the order 

of the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, and as per the Section 17 read with Section 23 of 

the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016, from the date of appointment of Interim Resolution Professional 

(IRP) Resolution Professional (RP), the management of the affairs of the Corporate Debtor shall vest in 

the interim resolution professional or Resolution Professional and the powers of the Board of Directors of 

the Corporate Debtor shall stand suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) 

or Resolution Professional (RP). Accordingly, the powers relating to appointment and re-appointment vest 

with the Resolution Professional. 

 

36. PLANT LOCATION ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE: 

 

Arshiya Ltd 

(Registered office) 

 

Arshiya FTWZ, 

CO-1, Survey Nos. 178/3 & 

178/4, At Post - Sai Village, 

Taluka - Panvel, District - 

Raigad, Pin code - 410 221, 

 

Email: 
cs.arshiyalimited@gmail.com 

Arshiya  Ltd 

(Corporate office) 

 

 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, 
Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. 
Annie Besant Road, 
Worli,Mumbai City, Mumbai, 
Maharashtra, India, 400018 
 

Email: 

cs.arshiyalimited@gmail.com  

Bigshare Services Private Limited  

S6 – 2 Pinnacle Business Park, Mahakali 

Caves Road, Next to Ahura Centre, 

Andheri (E), 

Mumbai – 400 093 

Tel: 91 22 62638200 

Fax: +91 22 62638299 

 

E-mail: 

 info@bigshareonline.com  

 

  

37. WEBLINKS FOR THE MATTERS REFERRED IN THIS REPORT ARE AS UNDER: 

Notice and Annual Report will be available on the website of the Company i.e., 

www.arshiyalimited.com , websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com 

and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com respectively, and on the e-

voting website of Bigshare Services Private Limited investor@bigshareonline.com. 

 

38. CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION: 

Pursuant to the initiation of the CIRP process vide the NCLT order dated April 23 2024, the powers of 

the Board of Directors stand suspended with effect from April 23, 2024. Hence, only the certification by 

Resolution Professional is provided in this Report. 

  

mailto:cs.arshiyalimited@gmail.com
mailto:cs.arshiyalimited@gmail.com
mailto:info@bigshareonline.com
http://www.arshiyalimited.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
mailto:investor@bigshareonline.com
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39. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE OF THE AUDITOR: 

A certificate from the Company’s Auditors, M/s A R T H & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm 

Registration No. 138552W), confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance, as 

stipulated under Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, is attached to this Report. 

 

40. CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT: 

Not applicable as the power of the Board stood suspended during the CIRP. 

 

YOURS FAITHFULLY 

 

FOR ARSHIYA LIMITED 

(UNDER CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS) 

 

 

 

SD/- 

PANKAJ MAHAJAN 

RESOLUTION PROFESSIONAL 

IBBI REGISTRATION NO: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017-2018/11420 

AFA DETAILS: AA1/11420/02/311226/108808 VALID UPTO 31-12-2026 

 

 

PLACE: DELHI

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE: FEBRUARY 27, 2026
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 

2023-2024 

 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 

 

LOGISTICS AND SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT SERVICE (MARKET 

OVERVIEW) 

1. Industry Overview 

The Logistics and Supply Chain Management Services industry plays a critical role in enabling 
global trade, manufacturing, e-commerce, retail, and infrastructure development. The sector 
encompasses transportation, warehousing, freight forwarding, inventory management, 
distribution, supply chain consulting, and technology-enabled logistics services. 

India is one of the fastest-growing economies. It is likely to be among the top three economic 
powers in the world by 2035, supported by its demographics and strong fundamentals. The 
Reserve Bank of India has projected India’s GDP to grow at 7.2%1 in FY24. During FY24, 
India demonstrated remarkable resilience in navigating global headwinds and registered a 
Growth rate of 8.2%, which was the highest among the major economies. However, private 
final consumption remained low during FY24.  

 

2. Global Market Size and Growth 

The global logistics and supply chain management services market is estimated at multi-
trillion-dollar levels when including transportation, warehousing, and value-added services. 
The technology-driven supply chain management services segment continues to grow at a 
strong compound annual growth rate (CAGR), supported by: 

• AI-driven demand forecasting 
• Real-time shipment tracking 
• Automation and robotics in warehousing 
• Cloud-based logistics platforms 
• Data analytics and predictive optimization 

The industry is projected to maintain steady double-digit growth in digital and integrated 
service segments over the coming years. 

The advancements in technology, such as automated material handling equipment, GPS and 
biometrics are helping organisations and businesses work efficiently, thereby stimulating the 
growth of the logistics market in the region. 

 

3. Indian Market Overview 

India’s logistics sector is one of the fastest-growing in the world, supported by: 

• Growth in manufacturing and infrastructure 
• E-commerce expansion 
• Government initiatives such as PM Gati Shakti and National Logistics Policy 
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• Rapid adoption of digital logistics platforms 

India’s logistics market is estimated at over USD 250 billion and is projected to grow at 8–
10% CAGR over the next five years. Increasing formalization and infrastructure investments 
are improving efficiency and reducing logistics costs as a percentage of GDP. 

In India, the logistics sector is a significant contributor to the overall growth of the economy. 
More than 22 million people rely on it for their livelihood. The sector is projected to add 10 
million jobs by 2027. As a key enabler of trade and commerce, the logistics sector underpins 
economic development, enabling nations like India to harness their full potential and achieve 
sustainable progress. Transportation is the largest segment of the logistics sector in India. 
Currently, the road transportation sector has the largest share in terms of tonnage, around 66%, 
of total cargo movement, followed by railways. 

 

4. Key Market Drivers 

a) E-commerce Growth 
Rising online retail demand is driving last-mile delivery, warehousing, and fulfilment 
services. 

 

b) Digital Transformation 
Adoption of AI, IoT, cloud computing, and automation is enhancing operational efficiency 
and transparency. 

c) Infrastructure Development 
Highway corridors, multimodal logistics parks, and dedicated freight corridors are boosting 
freight movement efficiency. 

d) Supply Chain Resilience 
Businesses are diversifying supply bases and investing in integrated logistics partners to 
mitigate disruption risks. 
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5. Key Industry Trends 

• Integrated 3PL and 4PL service models 
• Asset-light logistics strategies 
• Sustainable and green logistics initiatives 
• Real-time tracking and visibility platforms 
• Data-driven decision-making and automation 

 

Industry structure and growth drivers 

 

 
 

Increasing Customer base 
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6. Key trends and factors driving growth and structural changes for theIndian logistics 

industry include: 

➢ Key challenges ahead for logistics industry Fragmented supply chain: The logistics 

industry in India is highly fragmented, with numerous small players operating independently 

across supply chain segments. This fragmentation results in suboptimal resource utilisation, 

lack of standardisation, and difficulties in coordination and collaboration among stakeholders. 

Consolidating and integrating logistics operations by adopting technology platforms and 

establishing logistics parks and hubs can help overcome fragmentation. Such initiatives 

would streamline operations, improve efficiency, and cut costs through economies of scale. 

 

➢ Rising fuel prices: Fuel accounts for a significant portion of the logistics service providers' 

transportation costs. The cost of diesel in India depends on international crude oil prices as 

India imports most of its fuel requirements. The fluctuations in fuel prices can dramatically 

impact the logistics industry margins, impacting each stakeholder in the value chain. The 

rapid increase in fuel price can delay and substantially impact the operations of logistics 

companies, forcing them to raise prices or take losses. A sudden fall could result in short-

term boosts in profit and a surge of competition within the market to provide consumers with 

a lower price. Many logistics companies mitigate this risk by linking customer contracts to 

fuel prices. 

 

➢ Truck driver shortage: Potential drivers may find the profession unattractive due to the lack 

of security and safety, harsh working conditions, irregular working hours, and long hours 

away from their families. With significant improvement in road infrastructure coupled with 

new technologies such as ADAS which ensures higher safety, the working conditions for the 

drivers are improving. 

 

➢ Reverse logistics cost: India’s e-commerce sector is growing at a rapid pace driven by 

increased consumer incomes and smartphone penetration. However, one major challenge in 

the e-commerce sector is the logistics cost. Customers may decide to return the parcels for 

various reasons. These reverse logistics result in additional complexity in the operations and 

put an additional cost on the sellers, thus affecting the potential growth of the logistics 

industry. 

 

➢ Last-mile connectivity: The last-mile delivery segment of the logistics chain, encounters 

challenges such as manpower availability, inadequate road infrastructure, traffic congestion, 

poor address mapping and weather related disruptions. These factors contribute to delays, 

higher costs, and lower customer satisfaction, especially for ecommerce and FMCG 

companies reliant on timely deliveries. Improving last-mile connectivity through initiatives 

such as digital mapping technologies, alternate delivery modes, and different vehicle types 

would optimise delivery routes, shorten transit times and enhance service reliability, thus 

improving the overall customer experience. 

 

6. Key trends and factors driving growth and structural changes for the Indian logistics 

industry include: 

➢ Economic growth: The projected growth rate is higher than the growth rate estimated for other 
emerging and developing Asian countries. Increasing consumption and the growth of various 
businesses are expected to be the major drivers of growth in India. 
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➢ Rising consumer incomes and changing preferences: India’s per capita GDP reached 
US$2.73 thousand in 2024. The middle-income segment, with an annual household income of 
US$7,500-15,000, is projected to grow from ~27% to ~40% of the population in the next five 
years. Additionally, over 50% of the population is currently under 30 years of age and digitally 
native, resulting in rapid growth in purchases of products and services online. 

<< 

➢ New B2C commerce models: In addition to e-commerce marketplaces, new models like social 
commerce, commerce and direct-to-consumer (D2C) commerce continue to disrupt traditional 
retail models. Category expansion will also likely drive growth, with segments like consumer 
durables/white goods, home and furniture rapidly transitioning online. Overall, these structural 
changes in the consumption economy will likely increase the demand for reliable logistics and 
drive the growth of organised logistics players. 

< 

➢ Evolving B2B business models: The emergence of new distribution channels, new go-to-
market strategies such as direct-to-retail (D2R) and D2C and government initiatives like Make 
in India and production-linked incentive schemes are driving the need for greater speed, 
precision and visibility in traditional B2B supply chain operations. 

<<<< 

➢ Demand for integrated services: With the rollout of GST, enterprises are optimising supply 
chains for speed and efficiency instead of tax reasons. This shift towards a ‘total-cost’ approach 
is driving the demand for third-party players capable of providing integrated warehousing, 
transportation, and technology solutions instead of numerous traditional monoline players. In 
addition, the economic growth of Tier-II cities and beyond is further driving the need for 
players with deeper national capabilities. 

 

➢ Technology-led transformation: The availability of new technology and business intelligence 
tools enable organised logistics companies to solve various problems such as truck utilisation, 
route consolidation, demand forecasting, facility and infrastructure placement, inventory 
management, and fraud detection. In addition, hardware investments in automated parcel 
sortation systems, material conveyance systems, AGV/AMR systems, ASRS, and broader 
penetration of warehouse management systems are improving operational throughput and 
precision, thereby lowering human errors and operating costs. Using drones in the logistics 
sector has also gained momentum and has the potential to enable a wide range of applications. 

Connected logistics: Connected logistics is a set of interdependent communication devices 
and software that help gain real-time information about the goods shipped through various 
modes of transport. It shares relevant data and information related to logistics to smoothen the 
transportation process. Increase in the adoption of Internet of Things (IoT) technologies and 
sensor-based technologies such as RFID has contributed to boosting the connected logistics 
market. Furthermore, there is a huge opportunity to leverage advanced connected logistics 
management on India's upcoming 5G network. With ultra-high bandwidth, extremely low 
latency, massive capacity and increased government focus, 5G is expected to significantly 
improve connectivity. 
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7. KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

1 Current Ratio 
Current Assets 

0.24  
Current Liabilities 

 

2 Debt – Equity Ratio 
Total Debt 

2.51 
Shareholder's Equity  

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio 

Earnings available for debt service 
(Profit before tax + Interest + 
Depreciation + Amortization) -0.01 

Debt Service (Interest Principal 
Repayments) 

 

4 Return on Equity (ROE): 
Net Profits after taxes 

-158.25% Average Shareholder’s Equity 

  

5 
Trade Receivables Turnover 

Ratio 

Net Credit Sales 
0.21 

Trade Receivable Outstanding 

 

6 
Trade Payables Turnover 

Ratio 

Net Credit Purchase 
0.47 

Trade Payable Outstanding 
 

7 Net capital turnover ratio 
Net Sales 

-0.01 
Average Working Capital 

 

8 Net profit ratio 
Net Profit 

-8534.86 
Net Sales 

 

9 
Return on capital employed 

(ROCE) 

Earnings before interest and taxes 
-1.98 

Capital Employed 

    

10 Inventories Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods Sold (COGS)  0.00 

Average Inventory 

 

 

1) Current Ratio: The Company’s current ratio as at March 31, 2024 stands at 0.24, 

reflecting significant liquidity constraints. This is primarily attributable to the financial 

stress that led to the commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 

(CIRP) under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

During the CIRP period, operations and financial decisions are being managed under the 
supervision of the Resolution Professional, in accordance with applicable regulations. The low 
current ratio is largely driven by accumulated liabilities and classification of certain borrowings 
as current liabilities pursuant to accounting standards. 

The Company continues to operate as a going concern during the resolution process, and efforts 
are underway to invite and evaluate resolution plans aimed at restructuring the Company’s 
liabilities and restoring financial stability. 
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2) Debt–Equity Ratio: - As at March 31, 2024, the Company’s Debt–Equity Ratio stands at 2.51. 
The elevated leverage position reflects the financial stress experienced in prior periods, which 
led to the commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). 

During the CIRP period, borrowings remain outstanding and interest accruals continue in 
accordance with applicable accounting standards. The ratio is also impacted by the erosion of 
equity due to accumulated losses. 

3) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR): As at March 31, 2024, the Company’s Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio (DSCR) stands at –0.01. The negative ratio reflects the constrained operating 
cash flows during the year, primarily attributable to financial stress and the ongoing Corporate 
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). 

In accordance with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, debt servicing obligations are 
being addressed within the CIRP framework. The negative DSCR is indicative of the 
Company’s current financial position and underscores the necessity of a comprehensive 
resolution plan to realign debt obligations with sustainable cash flows. 

4) Return on Equity (ROE): The Company’s Return on Equity (ROE) for the year ended March 
31, 2024 stands at –158.25%. The negative return is primarily attributable to the net loss 
incurred during the year and the reduced equity base resulting from accumulated losses. 

The financial performance reflects the stress conditions that led to the initiation of the 
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. 
During the CIRP period, the Company continues to operate under the supervision of the 
Resolution Professional, and financial outcomes are influenced by ongoing restructuring 
considerations. 

5) Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio: The Company’s Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio for 
the year stands at 0.21. The low turnover reflects slower realization of outstanding receivables, 
primarily attributable to subdued business activity and legacy receivables accumulated in prior 
periods. 

The ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has also impacted customer 
payment cycles, as counterparties exercise caution in extending credit during the restructuring 
phase. 

The management, under the supervision of the Resolution Professional, has initiated focused 
efforts toward receivables monitoring and recovery to improve liquidity. 

6) Trade Payables Turnover: The Company’s Trade Payables Turnover Ratio for the year stands 
at 0.47. The lower turnover reflects extended payment cycles to creditors, primarily attributable 
to liquidity constraints and the impact of the ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 
(CIRP). 

In accordance with the applicable provisions governing CIRP under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, certain obligations are being addressed within the structured resolution 
framework. The ratio is also influenced by reduced procurement and operational levels during 
the year. 

The Company continues to engage with operational creditors in accordance with the resolution 
process and applicable regulations. 
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7) Net Capital Turnover: The Company’s Net Capital Turnover Ratio for the year stands at –
0.01. The negative ratio is primarily attributable to negative net working capital, as current 
liabilities significantly exceed current assets. 

The working capital position reflects accumulated liabilities and financial stress that led to the 
initiation of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code. 

During the CIRP period, the Company’s liquidity position remains constrained, and working 
capital management is subject to the provisions of the resolution framework. The outcome of 
the approved resolution plan is expected to realign the Company’s capital structure and 
working capital profile. 

8) Net Profit Ratio: The Company’s Net Profit Ratio for the year stands at –8,534.86%. The 
significantly negative ratio reflects the substantial net loss incurred during the year, primarily 
due to financial stress, interest obligations, and provisions arising from the ongoing Corporate 
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. 

The ratio is also materially impacted by the reduced revenue base during the year, which 
amplifies the percentage effect of reported losses. 

A substantial portion of the loss comprises non-cash adjustments and provisioning in 
accordance with applicable accounting standards. 

9) Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) 

The Company’s Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) for the year stands at –1.98%. The 
negative return reflects reduced operating performance and suboptimal utilization of capital 
during the year. 

The operating results were materially impacted by the financial stress conditions that led to the 
commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code. 

During the CIRP period, capital structure constraints and limited working capital availability 
have affected operational efficiency. The outcome of the approved resolution plan is expected 
to determine the future capital structure and return profile of the Company. 

10) Inventories Turnover Ratio: The Company’s Inventories Turnover Ratio for the year stands 
at 0. The ratio reflects the fact that inventory movement was negligible during the year, 
primarily due to the operational constraints arising from the ongoing Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process (CIRP) under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. 

The low turnover is also influenced by inventory write-downs and impairment provisions 
made in accordance with applicable accounting standards. 

The Resolution Professional, under the supervision of the National Company Law Tribunal 
(NCLT), is overseeing the management and utilization of inventories as part of the structured 
resolution process. 
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CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct and Ethics for the Members of the Board and Senior 
Management Personnel of the Company. All Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have 
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the Financial Year 2023-24. 

Subsequent to the closure of financial year 2023-2024, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 
(CIRP) has been initiated against the company with effect from April 23, 2024, and due to this the 
powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended and will be exercised by the resolution 
Professional. However, According to Section 17 read with Section 23 of the Insolvency & Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016, from the date of appointment of Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) Resolution 
Professional (RP), the management of the affairs of the Corporate Debtor shall vest in the interim 
resolution professional or Resolution Professional and the powers of the Board of Directors of the 
Corporate Debtor shall stand suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional 
(IRP) or Resolution Professional (RP).  
 
Compliance with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics as provided under Regulation 26 (3) of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the Resolution 
Professional has affirmed compliance with Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for the year ended 
March 31, 2024.  

 

YOURS FAITHFULLY 
 
FOR ARSHIYA LIMITED 
(UNDER CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS) 
 
 
 
Sd/- 
PANKAJ MAHAJAN 
RESOLUTION PROFESSIONAL 
IBBI REGISTRATION NO: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017-2018/11420 
AFA DETAILS: AA1/11420/02/311226/108808 VALID UPTO 31-12-2026 
 
DATE: FEBRUARY 27, 2026 
PLACE: DELHI 
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Resolution Professional Certificate 
(Pursuant to Regulation 17 (8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015) 

 

Subsequent to the closure of financial year 2023-2024, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 
(CIRP) has been initiated against the company with effect from April 23, 2024, and due to this the 
powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended and will be exercised by the resolution 
Professional. However, According to Section 17 read with Section 23 of the Insolvency & Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016, from the date of appointment of Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) Resolution 
Professional (RP), the management of the affairs of the Corporate Debtor shall vest in the interim 
resolution professional or Resolution Professional and the powers of the Board of Directors of the 
Corporate Debtor shall stand suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional 
(IRP) or Resolution Professional (RP).  
 

Pursuant to regulation 17 (8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the Resolution Professional hereby clarify that: 

➢ He has reviewed the financial statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year 2023-2024 
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
• These Statements does not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 

fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 
• These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 

➢ There are, to the best of his knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company 
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct. 
 

➢ He has accepted the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for 
financial reporting and that he has evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the 
Company pertaining to financial reporting and he has disclosed to the auditors and the Audit 
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which 
we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 
 

➢ He has indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 
• Significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
• Significant changes in accounting policies during the year, if any, and that the same have 

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and  
• That no instances of significant fraud have come to our notice.  

YOURS FAITHFULLY 
 
FOR ARSHIYA LIMITED 
(UNDER CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS) 
 
Sd/- 
PANKAJ MAHAJAN 
RESOLUTION PROFESSIONAL 
IBBI REGISTRATION NO: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017-2018/11420 
AFA DETAILS: AA1/11420/02/311226/108808 VALID UPTO 31-12-2026 
 
DATE: FEBRUARY 27, 2026 
PLACE: DELHI 
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FORM AOC -1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies 
or joint venture  

Part A- Subsidiaries 

                                                                                                                                           (In Rs. Lakhs) 

S.NO. PARTICULARS  ARSHIYA NORTHERN 
FTWZ LIMITED 
 

1 The date since when subsidiary was acquired  
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 
 

NA 

3 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries  
 

NA 

4 Share Capital 1,086.87 
 

5 Reserves & Surplus  (40,580.82) 
 

6 Total Assets  70,037.01 
 

7 Total Liabilities  1,09,530.96 
 

8 Investments  0 
 

9 Turnover  1,123.39 
 

10 Profit before taxation (36,149.12) 
 

11 Provision for taxation 0 
 

12 Profit after taxation (36,149.12) 
 

13 Proposed Dividend  0 
 

14 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% 
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                                                                                                                                           (In Rs. Lakhs) 

S.NO. PARTICULARS  NCR RAIL 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
LIMITED 
 
 

1 The date since when subsidiary was acquired  
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 

NA  

3 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries  
 

NA 

4 Share Capital 5,967.16 
 

5 Reserves & Surplus  (2,17,853.43) 
 

6 Total Assets  85,947.68 
 

7 Total Liabilities  2,97,833.95 
 

8 Investments  1.00 
 

9 Turnover  862.89 
 

10 Profit before taxation (1,36,707.37) 
 

11 Provision for taxation 0 
 

12 Profit after taxation (1,36,707.37) 
 

13 Proposed Dividend  0 
 

14 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% 
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                                                                                                                                        (In Rs. Lakhs) 

S.NO. PARTICULARS  ARSHIYA 
TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) 
PRIVATE LIMITED 
 

1 The date since when subsidiary was acquired  
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 

NA  

3 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries  
 

NA 

4 Share Capital 10.12 
 

5 Reserves & Surplus  (18.36) 
 

6 Total Assets  0.41 
 

7 Total Liabilities  8.67 
 

8 Investments  0 
 

9 Turnover  0 
 

10 Profit before taxation (0.60) 
 

11 Provision for taxation 0 
 

12 Profit after taxation (0.60) 
 

13 Proposed Dividend  0 
 

14 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% 
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                                                                                                                                           (In Rs. Lakhs) 

S.NO. PARTICULARS  ARSHIYA LIFESTYLE 
LIMITED 
 

1 The date since when subsidiary was acquired  
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 

NA  

3 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries  
 

NA 

4 Share Capital 148.50 
 

5 Reserves & Surplus  1,072.47 
 

6 Total Assets  5.306.95 
 

7 Total Liabilities  4,085.98 
 

8 Investments  1.00 
 

9 Turnover  7,731.36 
 

10 Profit before taxation (808.10) 
 

11 Provision for taxation 20.71 
 

12 Profit after taxation (828.81) 
 

13 Proposed Dividend  0 
 

14 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% 
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                                                                                                                                           (In Rs. Lakhs) 

S.NO. PARTICULARS  ARSHIYA LOGISTICS 
SERVICES LIMITED 
 

1 The date since when subsidiary was acquired  
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 

NA  

3 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries  
 

NA 

4 Share Capital 160.00 
 

5 Reserves & Surplus  (1,118.38) 
 

6 Total Assets  1,167.78 
 

7 Total Liabilities  2,126.16 
 

8 Investments  7.00 
 

9 Turnover  5,088.80 
 

10 Profit before taxation 120.32 
 

11 Provision for taxation 0 
 

12 Profit after taxation 120.32 
 

13 Proposed Dividend  0 
 

14 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% 
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                                                                                                                                           (In Rs. Lakhs) 

S.NO. PARTICULARS  ARSHIYA NORTHERN 
PROJECTS PRIVATE 
LIMITED 
 

1 The date since when subsidiary was acquired  
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 

NA  

3 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries  
 

NA 

4 Share Capital 5.00 
 

5 Reserves & Surplus  (25.26) 
 

6 Total Assets  0.72 
 

7 Total Liabilities  20.98 
 

8 Investments  0 
 

9 Turnover   
 

10 Profit before taxation (808.10) 
 

11 Provision for taxation 20.71 
 

12 Profit after taxation (828.81) 
 

13 Proposed Dividend  0 
 

14 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% 
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                                                                                                                                           (In Rs. Lakhs) 

S.NO. PARTICULARS  ARSHIYA 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
DEVELOPERS PRIVATE 
LIMITED 
 

1 The date since when subsidiary was acquired  
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 

NA  

3 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries  
 

NA 

4 Share Capital 1.00 
 

5 Reserves & Surplus  (5.05) 
 

6 Total Assets  0 
 

7 Total Liabilities  4.05 
 

8 Investments  0 
 

9 Turnover  0 
 

10 Profit before taxation (0.46) 
 

11 Provision for taxation 0 
 

12 Profit after taxation (0.46) 
 

13 Proposed Dividend  0 
 

14 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% 
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                                                                                                                                           (In Rs. Lakhs) 

S.NO. PARTICULARS  UNRIVALLED 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
PRIVATE LIMITED 
 

1 The date since when subsidiary was acquired  
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 

NA  

3 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries  
 

NA 

4 Share Capital 1.00 
 

5 Reserves & Surplus  (3.76) 
 

6 Total Assets  12.62 
 

7 Total Liabilities  15.38 
 

8 Investments  0 
 

9 Turnover  0 
 

10 Profit before taxation (0.79) 
 

11 Provision for taxation 0 
 

12 Profit after taxation (0.79) 
 

13 Proposed Dividend  0 
 

14 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% 
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                                                                                                                                           (In Rs. Lakhs) 

S.NO. PARTICULARS  ARSHIYA 3PL SERVICES 
PRIVATE LIMITED 
 

1 The date since when subsidiary was acquired  
 

2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 

NA  

3 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries  
 

NA 

4 Share Capital 5.00 
 

5 Reserves & Surplus  (263.46) 
 

6 Total Assets  289.13 
 

7 Total Liabilities  547.59 
 

8 Investments  0 
 

9 Turnover  798.08 
 

10 Profit before taxation (30.13) 
 

11 Provision for taxation 0 
 

12 Profit after taxation (30.13) 
 

13 Proposed Dividend  0 
 

14 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% held through Arshiya 
Logistics Services Limited 
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                                                                                                                                           (In Rs. Lakhs) 

S.NO. PARTICULARS  ARSHIYA PANVEL FTWZ 
SERVICES PRIVATE 
LIMITED 
 

1 The date since when subsidiary was acquired  
 

2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 

NA  

3 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries  
 

NA 

4 Share Capital 1.00 
 

5 Reserves & Surplus  338.44 
 

6 Total Assets  8,924.93 
 

7 Total Liabilities  8,585.49 
 

8 Investments  0 
 

9 Turnover  2,655.69 
 

10 Profit before taxation (414.41) 
 

11 Provision for taxation 0 
 

12 Profit after taxation (414.41) 
 

13 Proposed Dividend  0 
 

14 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% held through Arshiya 
Lifestyle Limited  
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                                                                                                                                           (In Rs. Lakhs) 

S.NO. PARTICULARS  ARSHIYA PANVEL 
LOGISTICS SERVICES 
PRIVATE LIMITED 
 

1 The date since when subsidiary was acquired  
 

2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 

NA  

3 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries  
 

NA 

4 Share Capital 1.00 
 

5 Reserves & Surplus  (1,500.40) 
 

6 Total Assets  395.67 
 

7 Total Liabilities  1,895.07 
 

8 Investments  0 
 

9 Turnover  2,717.58 
 

10 Profit before taxation (614.93) 
 

11 Provision for taxation 0 
 

12 Profit after taxation (614.93) 
 

13 Proposed Dividend  0 
 

14 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% held through Arshiya 
Logistics Services Limited 
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                                                                                                                                           (In Rs. Lakhs) 

S.NO. PARTICULARS  ARSHIYA DATA CENTRE 
PRIVATE LIMITED 
 

1 The date since when subsidiary was acquired  
 

2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 

NA  

3 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries  
 

NA 

4 Share Capital 1.00 
 

5 Reserves & Surplus  (303.99) 
 

6 Total Assets  0 
 

7 Total Liabilities  302.99 
 

8 Investments  0 
 

9 Turnover  0 
 

10 Profit before taxation (0.65) 
 

11 Provision for taxation 0 
 

12 Profit after taxation (0.65) 
 

13 Proposed Dividend  0 
 

14 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100%  
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                                                                                                                                           (In Rs. Lakhs) 

S.NO. PARTICULARS  ARSHIYA DISTRIBUTION 
HUB PRIVATE LIMITED 
 

1 The date since when subsidiary was acquired  
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 

NA  

3 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries  
 

NA 

4 Share Capital 1.00 
 

5 Reserves & Surplus  (1.07) 
 

6 Total Assets  0.88 
 

7 Total Liabilities  0.95 
 

8 Investments  0 
 

9 Turnover  0 
 

10 Profit before taxation (0.46) 
 

11 Provision for taxation 0 
 

12 Profit after taxation (0.46) 
 

13 Proposed Dividend  0 
 

14 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% held through Arshiya 
Logistics Services Limited 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



115 
 

                                                                                                                                           (In Rs. Lakhs) 

S.NO. PARTICULARS  AMD BUSINESS SUPPORT 
SERVICES PRIVATE 
LIMITED 
 

1 The date since when subsidiary was acquired  
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 

NA  

3 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries  
 

NA 

4 Share Capital 1.00 
 

5 Reserves & Surplus  (229.07) 
 

6 Total Assets  7,734.10 
 

7 Total Liabilities  7,962.17 
 

8 Investments  0 
 

9 Turnover  0 
 

10 Profit before taxation (1.79) 
 

11 Provision for taxation 0 
 

12 Profit after taxation (1.79) 
 

13 Proposed Dividend  0 
 

14 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% held through NCR Rail 
Infrastructure Limited 
 

 

Note: Certain subsidiary company(ies) of Arshiya Limited are presently undergoing Corporate 
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) and/or were unable to finalize their financial statements and 
requisite financial information within the timelines prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
Owing to the non-availability of complete, audited and duly approved financial statements, including 
the Notes to Accounts, of such subsidiary company(ies), the Company could not prepare Consolidated 
Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, in terms of Section 129(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Although the standalone Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss of the concerned subsidiary 
company(ies) were made available, the detailed financial disclosures and supporting information 
were not finalized. Accordingly, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company has prepared and attached Form AOC-1 containing salient features of the financial 
statements of subsidiaries to the extent information was available. 
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In view of the aforesaid constraints and pending finalization of complete financial statements of the 
subsidiary company(ies), consolidation of financial statements could not be carried out for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024. 

 

 

Part B – Associates and Joint Ventures 

 

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies 
and Joint Ventures  

The Company does not have Associate Company and Joint Venture; therefore, Part B is not applicable 

 

For Arshiya Limited 
(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 
 
Sd/- 
Pankaj Mahajan 
Resolution Professional 
IBBI Registration No: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017-2018/11420 
AFA Details: AA1/11420/02/311226/108808 VALID UPTO 31-12-2026 
 
Date: February 27, 2026 
Place: Delhi 
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FORM NO. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub section (3) of section 134 of the Act, and Rule 8 (2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Disclosures of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred into sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm length 
transactions under third proviso thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis – NIL 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions on an arm’s length basis: 

 
                                                                                                                              (In Rs. Lakhs) 

S.n
o. 

Name of 
the 
Related 
Party 

Nature of 
Relationsh
ip 

Nature of 
contract/ 
arrangeme
nts/ 
Transactio
ns  

Duration of 
the 
contract/ 
arrangeme
nt/ 
transaction
s 

Salient 
terms of 
the 
contracts 
or 
arrangeme
nts or 
transaction
s including 
the value, if 
any  

Date(s) of 
approval 
by the 
Board, if 
any 

Amou
nt 
paid 
as 
advan
ces, if 
any 

1 Arshiya 
Lifestyle 
Limited 
(CIN: 
U74110M
H2010PL
C20133) 

Subsidiary 
company  

Rendering 
of services 

As mutually 
decided 
between the 
company 
and the 
party  

600 30/05/2023 - 

2 Arshiya 
Panvel 
FTWZ 
Private 
Limited 
(CIN: 
U74999M
H2019PT
C32203) 
 

Subsidiary 
company  

Rendering 
of services 

As mutually 
decided 
between the 
company 
and the 
party  

240 30/05/2023 - 

3 Arshiya 
Northern 
FTWZ 
Limited 
(CIN: 
U51109M
H2008PL
C18355) 
 

Subsidiary 
company  

Leasing of 
property 

As mutually 
decided 
between the 
company 
and the 
party  

49.32 30/05/2023 - 

4 NCR Rail 
Infrastruct
ure 

Subsidiary 
company  

Leasing of 
property 

As mutually 
decided 
between the 

27.78 30/05/2023 - 
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Limited 
(CIN: 
U93000M
H2008PL
C180907) 
 

company 
and the 
party  

5 Iskandar 
Power 
Limited 
(Formerly 
known as 
Laxmipati 
Balaji 
Supply 
Chain 
Managem
ent 
Limited 
(CIN: 
U74999M
H2018PL
C30903) 

Enterprise 
owned or 
significantl
y 
influenced 
by KMP or 
their 
relatives 

Availing or 
rendering 
of services 
(electricity 
expenses) 

As mutually 
decided 
between the 
company 
and the 
party  

105.12 30/05/2023 - 

6 Arshiya 
Panvel 
FTWZ 
Services 
Private 
Limited 
(CIN: 
U74999M
H2019PT
C322030) 
 

Subsidiary 
company  

sale, 
purchase or 
supply of 
any goods 
or materials 
(Trade 
Receivables
) 

As mutually 
decided 
between the 
company 
and the 
party  

18.22 30/05/2023 - 

7 Iskandar 
Power 
Limited 
(Formerly 
known as 
Laxmipati 
Balaji 
Supply 
Chain 
Managem
ent 
Limited 
(CIN: 
U74999M
H2018PL
C30903) 

Enterprise 
owned or 
significantl
y 
influenced 
by KMP or 
their 
relatives  

sale, 
purchase or 
supply of 
any goods 
or materials 
(Trade 
Payables) 

As mutually 
decided 
between the 
company 
and the 
party 

3.73 30/05/2023 - 

8 Arshiya 
Data 
Centre 
Private 
Limited 

Subsidiary 
company 

sale, 
purchase or 
supply of 
any goods 
or materials 

As mutually 
decided 
between the 
company 

498.72 30/05/2023  
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(CIN: 
U72900M
H2019PT
C320780) 
 

(Other 
Recoverabl
e) 

and the 
party 

9 NCR Rail 
Infrastruct
ure 
Limited 
(CIN: 
U93000M
H2008PL
C180907) 
 

Subsidiary 
company 

sale, 
purchase or 
supply of 
any goods 
or materials 
(Other 
Recoverabl
e) 

As mutually 
decided 
between the 
company 
and the 
party 

982.52 30/05/2023  

10 Arshiya 
3PL 
Services 
Private 
Limited 
(CIN: 
U74999M
H2018PT
C313041) 

Subsidiary 
company 

sale, 
purchase or 
supply of 
any goods 
or materials 
(Other 
Payables) 

As mutually 
decided 
between the 
company 
and the 
party 

246.89 30/05/2023  

 
 

For Arshiya Limited 
(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 
 
 
Sd/- 
Pankaj Mahajan 
Resolution Professional 
IBBI Registration No: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017-2018/11420 
AFA Details: AA1/11420/02/311226/108808 VALID UPTO 31-12-2026 
 
Date: February 27, 2026 
Place: Delhi 
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

 

Statement under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) to the median remuneration of 

the employees of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 
 

 

Sr. No. 

 

Name of Directors/ KMP 

 

Designation 
Remuneration for FY 

2024-2025 (Amt. in 

Lakhs) 

% increase/decrease 

in remuneration 

 

 

Ratio of Remuneration 

of each Director/ Employee 

to the median 

remuneration 

1 Mr. Ajay Shankarlal Mittal  
Chairman and 

Managing Director 0 0% - 

2 

 

Mrs. Archana A Mittal  Joint Managing  

Executive Director  
0 0% - 

3 

 

Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra 
Non-executive 

independent 

director 

 

0 0% - 

4 

 

Mr. Rishabh Shah  Pankaj Non-executive 

independent director 
0 0% - 

5 

 

Mr. Ved Prakash Non-executive 

independent director 
0 0% - 

6 

 

Mr. Priya Madhukar 

Kenkare 

Non-executive 

independent director 
0 0% - 

7 Mr. Dinesh Sodani  Chief Financial Officer 70.36 25.30% 9.90 

8 Mr. Ajit Dabolkar Company Secretary 43.91 376.92% 6.18 

 

2. The median remuneration is 7,10,087 annually for FY 2023-24. 

 

3. Percentage decrease in the median remuneration of employees in FY 2023-24: 69.18% 

 

4. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2024: 21 

5. Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 

last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration a justification 

thereof –  
 

The average percentile decreases made in the salaries of employees other than Managerial Personnel was 18.77%. 
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6. Affirmation: 

 

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees is as per the 

Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

 

 

 

 
 

For Arshiya Limited 

(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 

 

 

Sd/- 

Pankaj Mahajan 

Resolution Professional 

IBBI Registration No: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017-2018/11420 

AFA Details: AA1/11420/02/311226/108808 VALID UPTO 31-12-2026 

 

Date: February 27, 2026 

Place: Delhi 

 

 

 

 

 



LOVENEET HANDA & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

Office : 201, S.F, Park View Complex, Plot No. 48 
Hasanpur, |.P. Extn,, Patparganj, Delhi-110092 

Ph.(0) : 011-43035488, Mobile : 9818664478 
E-mail : loveneet.cs@gmail.com 

loveneet@Ihacorp.in 
l.com 

Website : www.Ihacorp.in 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31°", 2024 

(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014) 

To, 

Members, Pankaj Mahajan (Resolution Professional) 
Arshiya Limited 

(Company Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 

I, Loveneet Handa, Proprietor of M/s Loveneet Handa and Associates, have conducted the Secretarial 
Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate practices by 

Arshiya Limited (hereinafter referred as “the Company Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution 
Process™) for the Financial Year ended on March 31%, 2024. This audit was conducted in a manner that 

provide us with a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books. papers, minute books, forms filed by the Company 

and other records maintained by the Company Management and also information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives, Resolution Professional Mr, Pankaj 
Mahajan during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 
has, during the audit period for the financial year ended on 31% March 2024 (“herein referred as 
“review period”). Compliance Statement 

During the period under review, the Company has complied (except where expressly provided) with the 

applicable provisions of: 

» The Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder 

» Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 

» SEBI Act, 1992 

» SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 

v
 

Applicable Secretarial Standards 

Branch Off. : D-112A, Shyam Park Extn. Sahibabad, Ghaziabad, (U.P.) -201005



We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed by the company from time 

to time, other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31%, 2024, 

according to the provisions of, 

(1)  The Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made there under. 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made there under: - 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed thereunder. 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act. 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment, and External Commercial 
Borrowings: 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’), 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011: 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

1992. 

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009: not applicable during the review period; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999: not applicable during the review period; 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client: 

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009: 
and not applicable during the audit period; not applicable during the audit period; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998. not 
applicable during the audit period: not applicable during the audit period. 

(h) Secretarial Standards-I and 11, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India ICSI. 

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited (NSE), BSE Limited (BSE) Stock Exchange(s). 

CURRENT CIRP STATUS DISCLOSURE (CIRP INITIATED AFTER THE AFTER CLOSER 

OF THE PERIOD UNDER REVIEW) 

As on the date of this Report, Arshiya Limited (CIN: L93000MH1981PLC024747) is undergoing 

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). by the Financial Creditor under Section 7 of the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (“IBC Code 20167), read with Rule 4 of the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Rules 2016. The application, vide petition No. CP (IB) No. 3143/MB/2019, was duly 

admitted by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT"), Mumbai Bench-VI, on 23" April, 

2024 Furthermore, the CIRP against the Principal Borrower has been admitted through order No. CP 

No. 1245/(1B)-MB-V/2021, dated 14.11.2022, by Bench V of NCLT Mumbai and the same was



v
 

v
 

v
 

v
 

admitted by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT™) under the provisions of the 

Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 (*IBC”). Prior to the commencement of CIRP, the Company 

was actively engaged in its business operations as a leading logistics and supply chain management 

service provider. The Group offered a wide range of integrated supply chain infrastructure and logistics 

services across various segments. 

we report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the 

composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out 

in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Further, due to the statutory and procedural requirements applicable during the ongoing CIRP, (effective 

date 23" April, 2024) certain filings have been completed, while some filings were delayed or could 

not be undertaken within for the Financial Year 2023-2024, within the prescribed timelines. Such delays 

wherever applicable, were occasioned due to the ongoing CIRP proceedings and the consequential 

administrative and procedural constraints. 

Further, we state that during the period under review. prior to the commencement of CIRP (effective 

date 23" April, 2024), the Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted in accordance with 

the provisions of Sections 149 and 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17,18, 19, 20 and 

21 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

However, upon commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), in terms of 

Section 17 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, the powers of the Board of Directors stood 

suspended and were vested in the Resolution Professional (RP). Accordingly, the management and 

control of the Company have been with the Resolution Professional, and the Board of Directors has not 

been authorized to exercise its powers. 

During the Financial Year under review. Mr. Kiran Shinde (DIN: 09667419), Non-Executive 

Independent Director of the Company, tendered his resignation from the Board with effect from April 

7. 2023, the Board places on record its appreciation for the valuable guidance and contributions made 

by Mr. Shinde during his tenure as Director, Consequent to his resignation, the composition of the Board 

and its Committees continued to remain in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and other 

applicable regulatory requirements, as detailed in the Corporate Governance Report filed with the Stock 

Exchange. 

Pursuant to Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, Every listed entity shall submit a secretarial compliance report in such form as 

specified, to stock exchanges, within sixty days from end of each financial year: This Report is not 

submitted by the Company to SE within the said stipulated period. 

We have received only the draft minutes of the Board Meeting and Committee Meetings for the period 

under review. Further, it has been observed that the minutes provided are not consecutively numbered. 

which is not in compliance with the requirements prescribed under Secretarial Standard — 1 (Meetings 

of the Board of Directors) and Secretarial Standard — 2 (General Meetings) issued by the Institute 

of Company Secretaries of India (ICST).
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We have demanded the Form MBP-1 (Disclosure of Interest by Director) and Form DIR-8 (Intimation by 

Director regarding disqualification) from the Management / Other Officials / Authorised Representative / 

Resolution Professional of the Company for the period under review. 

M/s. N. A. Shah Associates LLP (FRN: 116560W / W100149) resigned from the office of Statutory 

Auditors of the Company with effect from the close of working hours on August 14, 2023. 

Consequent to the resignation, M/s. A R T H A and Associates (FRN: 138552W). Chartered 

Accountants, were appointed by the Board of Directors as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill 

the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of the previous auditors. 

Further, at the Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2023, the members approved the 

appointment of M/s. A R T H A and Associates (FRN: 138552W) as Statutory Auditors of the 

Company for a term of five consecutive years and before passing this resolution the member have passed 

and approved auditor appointment 

M/s. AR T H A and Associates (FRN: 138552W) as Statutory Auditors as per Section 139(8) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, where a casual vacancy arises due to the resignation of an auditor, such 

appointment shall also be approved by the company at a general meeting convened within three months 

of the recommendation of the Board and he shall hold the office till the conclusion of the next annual 

general meeting. 

we further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 

size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines. (to the extent practicable and feasible under the ongoing CIRP) 

Cop:' 10753, Membership No.: F9055 

Peer Reviewed Certificate No. 5316/2023 
UDIN: FO09055G004004519 
Date:26.02.2026 
Place: Delhi 

NOTE: 

This report is to be read with our letter of event date which is annexed as ‘“ANNEXURE A’ and 

forms an integral part of this report.



To, 

“ANNEXURE A” 

Members, Pankaj Mahajan (Resolution Professional) 

Arshiya Limited 

(Company Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (Resolution Professional) 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company and the 
Resolution Professional of the Company in case CIRP, our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these secretarial records based on our audit. 

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done 
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations. 

standards is the responsibility of management and in terms of Section 17 of the IBC the responsibility 
lies with Resolution Professional upon commencement of CIRP, the powers of the Board of 
Directors stand suspended and are vested in the Resolution Professional (RP). Our examination was 

limited to the verification of procedures on test basis only. 

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of 
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

Cop: 10753, Membership No.: F9055 

Peer Reviewed Certificate No. 5316/2023 
UD! IN: FO09055G004004519 

Date:26.02.2026 
Place: Delhi
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ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF ARSHIYA LIMITED 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024 

(Pursuant to Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015) 

To, 
The Resolution Professional 
ARSHIYA LIMITED (under CIRP) 
CIN: L93000MH1981PLC024747 
Arshiya FTWZ, CO-1, Survey Nos. 178/3 & 178/4, 
At Post - Sai Village, Taluka - Panvel, 

District - Raigad, Pin code - 410 221 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by Arshiya Limited (“the Company™). a company listed on BSE Limited and the 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited, for the financial year ended March 31. 2024, pursuant to 

Regulation 24A of the Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations™). 

Members and stakeholders may note that the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) was initiated 
against the Company under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 pursuant to an application 

filed by Punjab National Bank. being the Financial Creditor. in respect of an alleged default of Rs. 
193,24,35,349.59 (Rupees One Hundred Ninety-Three Crore Twenty-Four Lakh Thirty-Five 
Thousand Three Hundred Forty-Nine and Fifty-Nine Paise). The Company. being the Corporate 
Guarantor of Arshiya Northern FI'WZ Limited, became subject to CIRP afier the loan account of the said 
subsidiary was classified as a Non-Performing Asset (NPA). Accordingly, an application for initiation of CIRP 
against the Company was filed by the Financial Creditor on August 20, 2019.s 

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal. Mumbai Bench. vide its order dated April 23, 2024, admitted 
the said application and appointed Mr. Nitin Vishwanath Panchal (IBBI Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP- 

P00777/2017-2018/11350) as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP). Upon such admission. the management 

and control of the affairs of the Company vested with the IRP, and all powers of the Board of Directors stood 
suspended in accordance with the provisions of the Code. 

Subsequently. an appeal was preferred before the Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, 
Principal Bench. by a suspended Director of the Company challenging the order of the NCLT. During the 

proceedings, an interim stay on the constitution of the Committee of Creditors (CoC) was granted: however, 

upon rejection of the settlement proposals submitted, the Hon’ble NCLAT vacated the interim stay on July 16, 
2024, permitting continuation of the CIRP. 

The Committee of Creditors was thereafter constituted on July 31, 2024, and in its meeting held on August 08, 

2024, the CoC appointed Mr. Pankaj Mahajan (IBBI Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00836/2017- 
2018/11420) as the Resolution Professional (RP) to conduct the CIRP for the remainder of the process period. 
The CIRP of the Company continues as on the date of this report under the supervision of the CoC. 

Branch Off. : D-112A, Shyam Park Extn. Sahibabad, Ghaziabad, (U.P.) -201005



This Secretarial Compliance Report is being issued on the present date with a delay. as the commencement and 

continuation of the CIRP, coupled with the transfer of management to the IRP/RP and the attendant 
administrative, procedural and operational constraints, resulted in the Secretarial Compliance under Regulation 
24A for the financial year ended March 31. 2024 not being completed and submitted within the prescribed period 
of sixty (60) days from the end of the financial year he said delay arose due to the commencement of CIRP with 
effect from 23rd April. 2024.) 

Accordingly. the present report is being issued on the basis of such records, documents, explanations and 
information as were made available to us during the course of the audit, to the extent feasible under the 
prevailing circumstances. 

Based on our verification of the listed entity's books, papers. minutes books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained and the information provided by the listed entity, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives/Resolution Professional during the conduct of Secretarial Review. we hereby report that in our 
opinion, the listed entity has. during the review period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the listed entity has proper Board processes 
and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

L, Lovencet Handa, Proprictor of Lovencet Handa & Associates, Company Sccretaries, have limited examined: 

all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by ARSHIYA LIMITED 
(“the listed entity™), 

the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges, 

website of the listed entity i.c., hitp://www.arshivalimited.com 

any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification, 

for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions of: - 

the Sccuritics and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars, 
guidelines issued thereunder: and 

the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA™). rules made thercunder and the Regulations, 
circulars, guidelines issued thercunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI™). 

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars’ guidelines issued thereunder, have been examined, 
include: - 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. 

Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Issuc of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018: Not Applicable during the period under review 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011, 

Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securitics) Regulations, 2018; Not Applicable 
during the period under review 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 
2021: Not Applicable during the period under review 

Sccuritics and Exchange Board of India (Issuc and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; Not 

Applicable during the period under review



Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 
2021; Not Applicable during the period under review 

Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations. 2015: 

The Depositories Act. 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder to the extent of 
Regulation 76 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 
2018 to the extent applicable; 

The Sececurities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issuec and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client to the extent of securities issued; 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Investor Protection and Education Fund) Regulations, 2009, 
Not Applicable during the period under review 

We have examined the compliance of above regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder as applicable 

during the period under review and based on the confirmations received from management of the Company as 
and wherever required. the compliance status of the listed entity is appended as below: 

Sr. No. Particulars Compliance 
Status 

(Yes/No/ NA) 

No 

Observations /Remarks by 
PCS* 

1 Secretarial Standards: 

The compliances of the listed entity are in 
accordance with the applicable Secretarial 
Standards (SS) issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries India (ICSI). as notified 
by the Central Government under scction 
118(10) of the Companies Act. 2013 and 
mandatorily applicable. 

During the audit for the 
financial year ended March 
31, 2024, it was observed 
that complete and duly 
signed copies of the minutes 
of meetings of the Board of 
Directors and Committees 

thereof were not made 
available Jor our 
verification. Further, 
Certain  draft  minutes 
produced before us were 
not  serially  numbered 
and/or not authenticated in 
accordance  with the 
applicable Secretarial 
Standards. 

Accordingly, based on the 
records made available to 
us, we are unable to 

comment conclusively on 
the full compliance of the 
Company with the 
applicable Secretarial 
Standards for the period 
under review. 

Adoption and timely updating of the Policies: 
i. All applicable policies under SEBI regulations 
are adopted with the approval of board of 
directors of the listed entities 

ii. All the policies are in conformity with SEBI 

Yes The Company has adopted 
various policies as 
mandated  under  the 
applicable provisions of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure 



Regulations and have been reviewed & updated 
on time, as per the 
regulations/circulars/guidelines issued by SEBL 

Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and other applicable 
SEBI  regulations, which 
were originally approved by 
the Board of Directors prior 
to the commencement of the 

Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process (CIRP). 

w
 

Maintenance and disclosures on Website: 

e The Listed entity is maintaining a 
functional website 

e Timely dissemination of the documents/ 
information under separate section on the 
website 

e Web-links provided in annual corporate 
governance reports  under  Regulation 

27(2) are accurate and specific which re- 

dircets to the relevant document(s)/ 
section of the website 

No o The Company  was 
maintaining a functional 
website  before  the 
Commencement of CIRP. 

o It was observed that the 
Company had largely 
disseminated the 
requisite documents and 

information  on  its 
website up to the quarter 

ended December 31, 
2023, in accordance with 
the requirements of the 
SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and 
Disclosure 
Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

o However, certain 
disclosures and updates 
pertaining to the quarter 
and year ended March 
31, 2024 were not found 

to be available / updated 
on the website as on the 
date of audit. 

e The aforesaid non- 
updation was noted in the 
context that subsequent 
to the closer of the 
financial ~ year,  the 
Company was admitted 
into Corporate 
Insolvency  Resolution 
Process (CIRP) in April 
2024, pursuant to which 
the management and 
control of the affairs of 

the Company underwent 
transition. 

o Annual Corporate 
Governance reports 
under Regulation 27(2) 
has not filed by the 
Company  for the 

Financial Year 2023- 
2024. 



Disqualification of Director: 

None of the Director(s) of the Company is/ are 
disqualified under Section 164 of Companies 
Act, 2013 as confirmed by the listed entity. 

Yes 

Based on the information 
and explanations provided 
by the listed entity and 
verification of the status of 
the Directors from the 
records available on the 
website of the Ministry of 
Corporate  Affairs, it was 
observed that none of the 
Director(s) of the Company 

were  disqualified under 
Section 164 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for 
the period under review. 

It was noted from the draft 
minutes of the meetings of 
the Board of Directors that 
the Directors had placed on 
record their declarations 
regarding non- 
disqualification under 
Section 164 of the 
Companies  Act, 2013, 
However, separate copies 
of such declarations in 
Form DIR-S were not 
made available to us for 

Accordingly, our 
verification in this regard 
has been based on the 

contents of the Board 

minutes, the information 
provided by the listed entity, 
and the publicly available 

records of the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs. 

Details related to Subsidiaries of listed 
entities have been examined w.r.t: 

a. Identification of material subsidiary 
companies 

No During the period under 
review: 

a) The identification  of 
material subsidiary(ies), 



b. Disclosure requirement of material as 
well as other subsidiaries 

as defined under 

Regulation 16(1)(c) of 
the  Securities  and 
Exchange Board of 

Listi 

DisclosureRequirements 
) Regulations, 2015, is 
required to be carried 
owt based on the income 
or net worth of the 
subsidiary in comparison 
with the consolidated 

income or net worth of 

the listed entity for the 
immediately  preceding 
Jfinancial year. 

However, in view of the 
ongoing Corporate 
Insolvency  Resolution 

Process  (CIRP) in 
respect  of  certain 

subsidiary company (ies) 
and non-availability of 
requisite financial and 
operational  data, the 
Company was not in a 
position  to  prepare 
consolidated  financial 
information, and 
consequently, the 
determination of 
material subsidiary(ies) 
could not be carried out 
during the financial year 
under review. 

(b) Accordingly, 
disclosures relating to 
material 
subsidiary(ies), to the 
extent applicable, could 
not be verified / 
determined, based on 
the  records  and 
information made 
available to us at the 
time of audit. 

Preservation of Documents: 

The listed entity is preserving and maintaining 
records as preseribed under SEBI Regulations 
and disposal of records as per Policy of 

Preservation of Documents and Archival policy 

No 

Based on the examination of 
records and information 
made available to us, it was 
observed that the Company 



prescribed under SEBI LODR Regulations, 
2015. 

had generally preserved 

and  maintained  the 
statutory and regulatory 
records in accordance with 
the  applicable  SEBI 
Regulations  and  its 

However, certain records 

to the quarter and year 
ended March 31, 2024 
could not be verified / were 

not found to be updated, 
based on the records made 
available to us at the time of 
audit. 

The aforesaid observation 
is noted in the context that 
subsequent to the closure 

of the financial year, the 
Company was  admitted 
into Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process (CIRP) 
in April 2024, pursuant to 
which the management and 
control of the affairs of the 
Company underwent 
transition. 

Performance Evaluation: 

The listed entity has conducted performance 
cvaluation of the Board, Independent Directors 
and the Committees at the start of every 
financial year/during the financial year as 
preseribed in SEBI Regulations. 

Yes 

Related Party Transactions: 

(a) The listed entity has obtained prior 

approval of Audit Committee for all related 
party transactions: or 

(b) The listed entity has provided detailed 

reasons along with confirmation whether 
the transactions were  subsequently 
approvedratified/rejected by the Audit 
Committee, in case no prior approval has 
been obtained. 

Yes 

Disclosure of events or information: yes Based on the examination of 
records and  information 



The listed entity has provided all the required 
disclosure(s) under regulation 30 along with 

schedule IIT of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 
within the time limit prescribed thereunder 

made available to us, it was 
observed that the listed 

entity has made the 
requisite  disclosures  of 
events and  information 
under Regulation 30 read 

with Schedule Il of the 
Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 
2013, within the time limits 
prescribed thereunder, to 
both the stock exchanges, 
namely BSE Limited and 
National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited. 

It was further noted that 
Ms. Kiran Shinde resigned 
from the Company with 
effect from April 07, 2023, 
and the said event was duly 
disclosed by the Company 

on both BSE and NSE in 
accordance  with  the 
applicable provisions. The 
Company has also filed 
Form DIR-12  with the 

Registrar of Companies in 
respect of the aforesaid 
resignation. 

10 Prohibition of Insider Trading: 

The listed entity is in compliance with Regulation 
3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015. 

No Pursuant 1o Regulation 
3(5) and Regulation 3(6) 
of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider 
Trading)  Regulations, 
2015, inter alia, relating 
to the maintenance of a 
Structured Digital 

Database (“SDD") and 
intimation thereof to the 

stock exchanges. 

It was noted that, as on 
the date of audit, the 
Structured Digital 
Database was not made 
available to us for 



verification, and 
accordingly, the entries 
therein, if any, could not 
be examined. However, 
based on the 
certificates/confirmations 

submitted by the 
Company to the stock 
exchanges up to the 
quarter ended December 
31, 2023, it was stated 
that the Company was 

maintaining the 
Structured Digital 
Database in accordance 
with  the  aforesaid 
Regulations. No access to 
the SDD was provided to 

us  for  independent 

It was further observed 
that the Company had 
generally  closed  the 

trading window during 
the relevant  periods, 
except that the trading 
window closure for the 
JSourth quarter and year 

ended March 31, 2024 
could not be verified, in 
view of the fact that 
subsequent to the closure 
of the financial year, the 
Company was admitted 
into Corporate 
Insolvency  Resolution 
Process (CIRF) in April 

2024, pursuant to which 
the management and 
control of the affairs of 
the Company underwent 
transition. 

Accordingly, our 
verification with respect 
to  compliance  with 
Regulation  3(5) and 

Regulation 3(6) has been 
restricted to the 
information, 

explanations and 
publicly available 
confirmations made 
available to us, and we 
are unable to comment 

conclusively on  the 
maintenance and 



completeness  of  the 
Structured Digital 
Database for the period 
under review. 

11 Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if YES 

any: 

No action(s) has been taken against the listed 

entity/ its promoters/ directors/ subsidiaries either 
by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under 

the Standard Operating Procedures issued by 
SEBI through various circulars) under SEBI 
Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued 
thereunder except as provided under separate 
paragraph herein. 

12 Additional non-compliances, if any: No Based on the 

No additional non-compliance observed for any 
SEBI regulation/circular/guidance note etc. 

examination of records 
and information made 
available to us, no 
additional non- 
compliance with the 
provisions of the SEBI 
Regulations, circulars 

or guidance notes was 
observed for the period 
under review and up to 
the quarter  ended 
December 31, 2023. 

However, in respect of 
the quarter and year 
ended March 31, 2024, 
certain  compliances 
were not complied with 
/ were not undertaken, 
as the Company was 
admitted  into  the 

Corporate  Insolvency 
Resolution Process 
(CIRP) on April 23, 
2024, immediately after 

the end of the financial 
year. 

Accordingly, due to the 
commencement of CIRP 
and  the  resulting 
limitations in access to 
records and 



operational  control, 
certain compliances for 
the said period could 
not be complied with, 
based on the records 
and information made 

available to us at the 
time of audit, as 
detailed elsewhere in 
this report. 

Compliances related to resignation of statutory auditor from listed entities and their material subsidiaries 
as per SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated October 18, 2019: 

Sr. No. | Particulars Compliance | Observations /Remarks by 

Status PCS* 
(Yes/No/ 
NA) 

1 Compliances with the following conditions while appointing/re-appointing an auditor 

yes Pursuant to the provisions of 
i. If the auditor has resigned within 45 Section 139 of the Companies 
days from the end of a quarter of a financial Act, 2013, a casual vacancy 
year, the auditor, before such resignation, arose in the office of the 
has issued the limited review/ audit report Statutory Auditor due to the 
for such quarter; or resignation of M/s N. A. Shah 

Associates LLP, (FRN: 
116560W / W100149), the then 
Statutory  Auditor  of  the 
Company. 

Consequent thereto, the Board 
of Directors, at its meeting held 
on August 14, 2023, upon the 
recommendation of the Audit 
Committee,  approved  the 
appointment of M/s A RT H & 
Associates, Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration 
No. 138552W) as the Statutory 

Auditor of the Company for a 
term of five (5) consecutive 
years, commencing from the 
conclusion of the 42nd Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) till the 
conclusion of the 47th AGM, 
subject to approval of the 
shareholders. 

The shareholders of the 
Company subsequently 
approved the said appointment 



ii. If the auditor has resigned after 45 days 
from the end of a quarter of a financial year. 
the auditor before such resignation, has 
issued the limited review/ audit report for 
such quarter as well as the next quarter; or 

iii. If the auditor has signed the limited 
review/ audit report for the first three 
quarters of a financial year, the auditor 
before such resignation, has issued the 
limited review/ audit report for the last 
quarter of such a financial year as well as 
the audit report for such financial year, 

at the 42nd AGM held on 
September 29, 2023, in respect 
of the financial year 2022— 
2023, and accordingly M/s A R 
T H & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants were appomted as 

the Statutory Auditor of the 
Company for a period of five 
consecutive  years, at such 
remuneration as may be 
determined by the Board of 
Directors from time to time. 

Disclosure pursuant to SEBI 
Circular on Auditor 
Resignation 

With  reference  to  SEBI 
Circular No. 
CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 
dated October 18, 2019 issued 
by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, it is noted that 
M/s  N. A. Shah Associates 
LLP. (FRN: 116560 / 

W100149), the  outgoing 
Statutory Auditor, had resigned 
on forty-five (45%) day from the 
end of the quarter ended June 
30, 2023. In accordance with 

the said circular, the financial 
results and the Limited Review 
Report for the quarter ended 
June 30, 2023, were required to 
be reviewed and reported upon 
by the outgoing Statutory 
Auditor, and accordingly, the 
same were issued by M/s N. A. 
Shah Associates LLP, (FRN: 
1165600/ W100149) 

Other conditions relating to resignation of statutory auditor 



Reporting concerns by Auditor with respect 
to the listed entity/its material subsidiary to 
the Audit Committee: 

a In case of any concem with the 
management of the listed entity/material 
subsidiary such as non-availability of 
information / non-cooperation by the 
management which has hampered the audit 
process, the auditor has approached the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the 
listed entity and the Audit Committee shall 

receive  such concem directly and 
immediately without specifically waiting for 
the quarterly Audit Committee meetings. 

NA 

b.  In case the auditor proposes to resign. 
all concerns with respect to the proposed 
resignation. along with relevant documents 
has been brought to the notice of the Audit 
Committee. In cases where the proposed 
resignation is due to non-receipt of 
information /  explanation from the 
company, the auditor has informed the 

Audit Committee the details of information/ 
explanation sought and not provided by the 
management, as applicable. 

¢.  The Audit Committec /| Board of 
Directors, as the case may be, deliberated on 
the matter on receipt of such information 
from the auditor relating to the proposal to 
resign  as  mentioned above  and 
communicate its views to the management 
and the auditor. 

ii. Disclaimer in case of non-receipt of 
information: 

The auditor has provided an appropriate 

disclaimer in its audit report, which is in 
accordance with the Standards of Auditing 
as specified by ICAI / NFRA, in case where 
the listed entity/ its material subsidiary has 
not provided information as required by the 
auditor. 

NA 

The listed entity / its material subsidiary has 
obtained information from the Auditor upon 
resignation, in the format as specified in 

NA 



Annexure- A 

2019. 

in SEBI Circular CIR/ 
CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated 18th October, 

*The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued 

thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below: 

Sr. C‘?“" Regu- Deviations | Acti [T'ype of |Details  of| Fine Obser- | Man- Re- 
No. pliance lation/ on  |yction | Violation Amount | vations | age- marks 

Require- | Circular Tak / ment Re- 
ment No. enby Remar | sponse 
(Regu- ks of 
lations/ the 
circulars/ Practic 
guide- ing 
lines Compa 
including ny 
specific Secret 
clause) ary 

None 

(a) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous reports: 

sr. | Compliance Reg | Deviatio | Act [Type |[Details of| Fine |Observati | Management | Re- marks 
No. |Requirement | yja¢ | ng ion pof Violation | Amou | ons/ Response 

(Regulations/ | o/ Ta |sction nt Remarks 
circulars/ guide- | jp ke of the 

lines including| ey n Practicing 
specific clause) | 4 by Company 

No. Secretary 

None 



Assumptions and Limitation of scope and review: - 

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information 
furnished, are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity/Resolution Professional in case 
of Company undergoing CIRP. 

Our responsibility is to certify based upon our examination of relevant documents and information. This 
is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion. 

‘We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial Records and Books of Accounts of 
the listed entity. 

This Report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A (2) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and is neither an assurance as to 

the future viability of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management 
has conducted the affairs of the listed entity. 

This Report is limited to the Statutory Compliances on laws/ regulations / guidelines listed in our report 
which have been complied by the Company up to the date of this Report pertaining to financial year 
ended March 31, 2024. 

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the random 
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in seeretarial records. We believe that the processes 
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

FOR M/S LOVENEET HANDA AND ASSOCIATES 
CO\IP‘\N\ SECRETARIES 

ED CERTIFICATE NO. 53162023 

PROPRIETOR 
MEMBERSHIP NO.: 9055 
COP: 10753 
UDIN: FO09055G004004541 

DATE: 26.02.2026 
PLACE: DELHI



“Annexure to Annual Secretarial Compliance Report™ 

To, 

The Resolution Professional 
ARSHIYA LIMITED (under CIRP) 
CIN: L93000MH1981PLC024747 
Arshiya FTWZ, 

CO-1, Survey Nos. 178/3 & 178/4, At Post - Sai Village, Taluka, 
Panvel, District - Raigad, Pin code - 410 221 

Our Certificate on the Annual Secretarial Compliance Report under regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management including board of 
Directors and Compliance Officer of the Company/Resolution Professional in case of Company 
undergoing CIRP. Our examination of test check basis was limited to the procedures followed by the 
company for ensuring compliance with the SEBI regulations. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on a test 
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the 
Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024. We believe that the process and practices we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. Thave not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 

the company. 

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, 

rules and regulations and happening of events ete. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of 

procedures on test basis. 

FOR M/S LOVENEET HANDA AND ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

D CERTIFICATE NO. 53162023 

COMPANY SECRETARY 
PROPRIETOR 
MEMBERSHIP NO.: 9055 
COP: 10753 
UDIN: FO09055G004004541 

DATE: 26.02.2026 
PLACE: DELHI
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